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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWRE DM

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$69.5 million, representing 82.9%
decrease as compared with approximately HK$405.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The drop is largely attributable to the
suspension of trading business in 2016. Loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$16.9 million, as compared with
loss of approximately HK$34.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. Such decrease in net loss is primarily attributable to the reduction
of staff costs and other expenses during the year ended 31 December
2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, investor sentiment in
Hong Kong remained cautious due to the fact that the growth of
global economy slowed down and the financial market experienced a
significant volatility under the effect of looming unexpected accidents,
such as Brexit and the election of Trump as the US president. In the
second half of 2016, the rebound in Hong Kong stock market sustained
driven by the intention to maintain loose monetary policies in US and
the official launch of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the total revenue of Sheng
Yuan Financial Services Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “SYFS
Group”) decreased by nearly 59.5% to approximately HK$69.5 million
(2015: approximately HK$171.5 million).

For securities business, the revenue from securities brokerage and
financial services during the year ended 31 December 2016 decreased
to approximately HK$22.4 million (2015: approximately HK$130.6
million). Such decrease in revenue was mainly due to the inactive trading
in Hong Kong stocks and placing market in light of the economic
uncertainties in Hong Kong.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmRE DM

For asset management business, Sheng Yuan Asset Management
Limited (“SYAM”) acts as the fund manager or investment adviser
for 13 funds and 13 discretionary accounts. The total assets under
management of SYAM have substantially increased by nearly 134.2%
to more than HK$8.9 billion (2015: approximately HK$3.8 billion) as of
31 December 2016. During the year ended 31 December 2016, SYAM
recorded segment revenue of approximately HK$47.6 million (2015:
approximately HK$40.9 million), representing a significant increase of
nearly 16.4%.

For corporate financing business, Sheng Yuan Capital (Hong Kong)
Limited (“SYC”) commenced to carry out business during the reporting
period. By stepping up its efforts to explore potential opportunities, SYC
had completed the recognization of the income generated from three
orders of financial advisory business from external customers during
the reporting period. During the year ended 31 December 2016, SYC
recorded an income of approximately HK$1.5 million (2015: HK$0).

In order to provide an additional source of income for its financial
business, the SYFS Group expanded the proprietary trading business
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and mainly invested in listed
shares in Hong Kong market and private funds. In light of the sluggish
Hong Kong stock market, the segment profit from proprietary trading
business for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$25.7 million (2015: segment profit of HK$4.3 million).

As the commodity market remains sluggish, the Group has
continued to suspend its trading business for the year of 2016.
The segment loss for trading business for the year ended
31 December 2016 was approximately HK$3.3 million (2015: segment
loss of HK$5.9 million).

On 9 April 2014, Sheng Yuan Financial Services Group Limited (“SYFS”),
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with the several
subscribers, pursuant to which the subscribers conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and SYFS conditionally agreed to issue the convertible
notes at an aggregate consideration of HK$45 million (the “Convertible
Notes”). Details of the Subscription Agreement and the Convertible
Notes can be found in the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 9 April 2014 and 16 May 2014 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWRE DM

Upon completion of the Subscription Agreement, two subscribers,
namely WisePublic Holdings Limited and Li Gang (the “Guarantors”)
(who hold Convertible Notes with an aggregate amount of HK$25
million) executed and delivered to SYFS and the Company the deed of
profit guarantee, pursuant to which, the Guarantors guaranteed that
the audited consolidated profits, or where applicable, the accumulated
audited consolidated profits after taxation of the SYFS group for each
of (i) the financial year ending 31 December 2014, (ii) the two financial
years ending 31 December 2015 and (i) the three financial years ending
31 December 2016 shall be not less than zero, HK$20,000,000 and
HK$50,000,000, respectively.

The accumulated audited consolidated profits after taxation of the SYFS
group for each of (i) the financial year ending 31 December 2014, (i) the
two financial years ending 31 December 2015 and (iii) the three financial
years ending 31 December 2016 were HK$19.9 million, HK$30.0 million
and HK$50.1 million, respectively. Therefore, the guaranteed profits
were achieved accordingly.

In order to focus on private equity and venture capital investment as
well as conducting foreign investment activities and planning to expand
its business into Mainland China through Closer Economic Partnership
Arrangement (CEPA) in the future, the Group has acquired a licensed
corporation carrying on the businesses of advising on securities and
asset management in Hong Kong in August 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment
in Xinhua (Daging) Merchandise Exchange Company Limited (¥1%
(REB)EGRLSFAAERAT, “XHME”), a merchandise exchange
company established in Heilongjiang Province, the PRC, has recorded
a significant increase in both revenue and net profit. The Company’s
share of profit of XHME amounted to HK$3.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2016. In December 2016, the board of directors of
XHME had met and resolved to restructure its business lines for local
compliance purpose which involved suspension of a material line of
business. In view of this, the directors of the Company had performed
an impairment assessment of the Group’s interest in XHME based on a
valuation with the assistance of an independent valuer. The valuation of
the Group’s interest in associate is determined based on an underlying

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmRE DM

projection of cash flows provided by XHME. Based on the impairment
assessment, the recoverable amount of the Group’s interests in XHME
is estimated to be higher than the carrying amount and no impairment
is considered necessary as at 31 December 2016.

PROSPECTS

In 2017, apart from its traditional brokerage business, Sheng Yuan
Securities Limited will further develop their intermediary businesses such
as underwriting of IPO, placement of private notes, bonds and funds,
as well as shares to deliver steady profit growth. SYAM will continue
to step up its efforts in funds management and discretionary accounts
management services to expand its customer base, at the same time
keeping abreast of the market trends. For proprietary trading, the Group
plans to increase its investment in fixed income products, seeking
opportunities arising from the fluctuation of secondary market.

Though facing with the sluggish economy amid market downturn, the
Group will keep on weathering through with great courage. Looking
forward, the complexity and fluctuation of the market is likely to sustain.
However, Hong Kong is increasingly important for its role as an access
to overseas markets, with the gradual opening up of the capital market
in Mainland China and the progressively strengthened interactions
among cross-border investors. Looking ahead, the SYFS Group will be
cautiously optimistic about the steady growth of businesses by virtue of
its pioneering work style as well as steady and stable business model.

To facilitate the diversification and expansion of business development in
PRC, the Group will continue to search opportunities in Mainland China
including but not limited to the setting up joint ventures investments
through CEPA, QFIl (“Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor”) or QDII
(“Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor”) frameworks by allowing
the Group to access the huge and fast-growing financial markets
and enabling the Group to engage in a full spectrum of securities and
financial business in PRC. It is believed that the formation of such
investments would offer a good opportunity for the Group to embark
on a new milestone in its business development in financial services
industry. On 8 August 2016, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (the “MOU”) with 3 corporate investors in the PRC
(the “CoPromoters”). Under the MOU, the Company and the Co-
Promoters intended to form a joint venture securities company in Fujian,
which would be principally engaged in securities related business
with full licences to be approved by the China Securities Regulatory
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWRE DM

Commission, the PRC. Due to the uncertainty of rules and regulations,
the Group is also exploring the business opportunities in other regions
in Mainland China.

To capture the opportunities in increasing demand for foreign
investment from Mainland China enterprises, the Group is planning
to establish overseas platforms for investment to facilitate the global
expansion of Mainland China enterprises. Countries of the Asian Pacific
Region will be the targets of the Group to set up such platforms. The
Group believes that it will further diversify its businesses and broaden its
revenue sources.

The Group will continue to explore new business opportunities, with
the support of its strong team, in order to provide healthy returns for its
stakeholders in the future.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group has acquired a licenced corporation to carry on the
businesses of advising on securities and asset management in Hong
Kong in August 2016.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, cash and bank balances in general accounts
maintained by the Group were approximately HK$126.5 million,
representing a increase of approximately 109.1% from approximately
HK$60.5 million as at 31 December 2015. Balances in trust and
segregated accounts were approximately HK$301.1 million (2015:
HK$51.4 million). Trade and other receivables and prepayments
were approximately HK$32.0 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$291.2 million), which mainly represented decreased receivables
from trading business and decreased trade volume arising from
business of securities brokerage. Trade and other payables and accruals
were approximately HK$419.5 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$117.0 million), which was due to an increase in trade payable from
securities brokerage.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2016 were approximately HK$693.1 million (2015: HK$587.5 million)
and approximately HK$611.8 million (2015: HK$344.4 million)
respectively. The borrowings as at 31 December 2016 amounted
to HK$26.4 million (2015: HK$222.3 million). The gearing of the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmRE DM

Group, measured as total debts to total assets, remained healthy at
approximately 24.7% as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 55.2%). As at
31 December 2016, the Group recorded net assets of approximately
HK$166.4 million (2015: HK$178.3 million), which was mainly due to
the loss recorded during the year ended 31 December 2016. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group financed its operations with
internally generated cash flow and funds from convertible bonds issued.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars (“USD”), and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group has
not implemented any foreign currencies hedging policies. However, the
Group’s management will closely monitor exchange rate movement and
will take appropriate actions to reduce the risks.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 56,000,000 shares of the
Company were issued upon exercise of share options.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, Group did not have any pledged assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed approximately 56
employees. The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and are reviewed annually
by management. In addition to basic salary, discretionary bonuses,
mandatory pension fund and medical insurance scheme, share options
may also be granted to eligible employees at the discretion of the Board
and are subject to the performance of the individual employees as well
as the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2012 and was further appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in September 2013. Mr. Wu is
responsible for the overall business operations and management
of the Group. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree in education,
postgraduate certificate in education management and postgraduate
diploma in education management from The University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. Mr. Wu is also certified as a & &2
81 #8 2| Al (Senior China Certified Financial Planner (ChFP)) by Ministry
of Labour and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). He was appointed as the Advisor in Economic Growth of Hebei
Chengde Hi-Rank & Hi-Tech Industries Development Zone (7&1& T /= T
iy EE 350 38 1R 475 25 R BA ) in 2006. The private company previously
held by him was engaged by entities to provide financial solutions,
business feasibilities and fund raising liaison in the PRC.

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director in June 2014 and the chief financial officer of the Company
in August 2014. Ms. Cheng is responsible for the overall financial and
administrative functions and corporate governance of the Group.
Ms. Cheng has over 20 years of professional and senior managerial
experiences in legal compliance, corporate financial planning and
management. Ms. Cheng has been holding senior positions in listed
companies in Hong Kong since 2000. She also worked for First
Shanghai Capital Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Cheng
holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Huan Guocang, aged 67, is currently the chief executive officer
of Primus Pacific Partners Limited (“Primus”). Dr. Huan holds master
degrees in arts from the Graduate School of International Studies of the
University of Denver in 1982 and Columbia University in 1983, a PhD
degree from Princeton University in 1987 and John Olin post doctoral
fellow from the Centre for International and Strategic Studies of Harvard
University in 1987. Before the set-up of Primus in 2005, Dr. Huan has
been the Head of Investment Banking (Asia Pacific) of HSBC, the co-
Head of Investment Banking (Asia Pacific) of Citigroup, the managing
director and Head of China of BZW Asia Limited, a senior economist
and vice president of J.P. Morgan, an assistant professor of Columbia
University and an economist of Deutsche Bank. Dr. Huan is currently the
independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Environmental
Group Limited (formerly known as “Beijing Development (Hong Kong)
Limited”), the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lo Ka Wai, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
nonexecutive Director in March 2014. Mr. Lo has over 20 years
experience in financial management and corporate finance gained
from working as a chief financial officer and/or a company secretary
for various listed companies in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Lo is an
executive director of National United Resources Holdings Limited and
an independent non-executive director of Yusei Holdings Limited,
the shares of both of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo had been an executive director of Han Tang
International Holdings Limited and a chief financial officer of a company,
the shares of both of which are listed on the main board and the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange respectively. Mr. Lo graduated
from the University of Wollongong, Australia with a bachelor degree in
commerce. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and CPA Australia.

Mr. Wu Fred Fong, aged 69, was appointed an independent
nonexecutive Director in March 2014. Mr. Wu has considerable
experience in auditing, corporate planning, investment, consulting and
finance with public companies in Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Wu holds
a master of business administration degree from The Schulich School of
Business, York University in Canada. Mr. Wu is a chartered accountant
qualified in Canada and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wu has substantial directorship and
corporate governance experience. Currently, Mr. Wu is the independent
non-executive director of Minth Group Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wu had been the independent non-
executive director of China Public Procurement Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests
of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.
The Company has complied with the code on corporate governance
practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2016 except
the following deviations:

The Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Although the Company does not
have a Chairman, all major decisions are made in consultation with the
Board members and the senior management of the Company. There
are three independent non-executive Directors in the Board. The Board
considers that there is sufficient balance of power and the current
arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

Under the Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings. Dr.
Huan Guocang and Mr. Lo Ka Wai, both are independent non-executive
Directors, were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company on 27 May 2016 as they had other business commitments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules as
a code of conduct of the Company for directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprised two executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board’s members during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report is as follows:

Exg

RZE—RNF+-_A=+—H ZEFLCHW
FHTES R = RBELIERNITEERHEL ©

REBE-_T—X"F+_A=Z+—HLEFER
HEARETIEASH E5g 2HEKKEN
T

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, Wiliam (CEO) DRI & (7T #EE)
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara (CFO) RO T (A BHEH)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHITES
Dr. Huan Guocang EHEELT
Mr. Lo Ka Wai BRERE
Mr. Wu Fred Fong AR E
During the year ended 31 December 2016, four Board meetings were REZ_-ZT—"E+-A=+—HILFE -
held. Detail of the Directors’ attendance records were as follows: HBOTOREESSH BERESLFEFS
T
Meetings attended/
Name Eligible to attend
HESEIE
HE CEREEERRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William A FRIAE 4/4
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara B2+ 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Dr. Huan Guocang EREEL 4/4
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ‘ERERE 4/4
Mr. Wu Fred Fong R E 4/4
ZE-REEFR BRERARATR
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, one general meeting was REBZ-T—"F+-A=1+—HIEFE "
held. Detail of the Directors’ attendance records was as follows: HEBET-RBRRRE - FREFHEFEH
FIET -
Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HESERE
Name H®E FEREEERARY™
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William A FRIAE 11
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara B2+ 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Dr. Huan Guocang EREEL 0/1
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERERL 0/1
Mr. Wu Fred Fong R SE 1/1
The Board is responsible for formulation of the Group’s strategies EF& B 8 HE AEE 2 K MK - Fit
and policies, approval of annual budget and business plan, and FEREREKE - UREBEAEEZH

supervising the management of day-to-day operation of the Group
to ensure the business objectives are met. In addition, the Board has
also delegated various responsibilities to the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Company. Further details of these committees are
set out in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has reserved for

its decisions all major matters of the Group including:

1. discussion on the Group’s strategies and future development;

2. reviewed the term of employment of Directors;

3.  discussion on and approval of the financial results of the Group
and the recommendation of any dividend;

4. reviewed the interim results of the Group for the period ended 30
June 2016;

5. reviewed the internal control system and risk management of the
Group;

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6. approval on acquisition of a licensed company;
7. approval on exercise of share options;
8.  approval on the renewal of tenancy agreement;

9.  approval on the closing, opening and change signatories of bank
accounts; and

10. matters as required by laws and ordinance.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of the
Company whenever necessary.

The Directors are committed to complying with the Code provision
A.6.5 on Directors’ training which come into effect on 1 April 2012. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided their
training records for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 to the
Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has not adopted A.2.1 of the Code by appointing
separate individual to take up the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer. In the absence of a chairman, the executive Directors
will be responsible for the management of the Board and ensure good
corporate governance practices will be implemented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election as required by the
bye-law of the Company (the “Bye-Law”).
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee
include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration from time
to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Currently, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Wu
Fred Fong (Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Lo Ka Wai. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting. The attendance of individual members was set out in the
following table.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

HESRRE

Name ®E FEREESRRY™
Mr. Wu Fred Fong RS E 1/1
Dr. Huan Guocang EREFEL 1/1
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERELE 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with specific written
terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority and duties. The
principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations for changes as necessary, to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and to
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the Chairman and the CEQO.
The Nomination Committee should meet at least once a year and
when the need arises; and

2. responsible for identifying, recruiting and evaluating new
nominees to the Board and the assessment of the qualifications
of the directors. The criteria adopted to select and recommend
candidates for directorship includes the candidate’s experience,
professional knowledge, integrity, time commitment and other
statutory or regulatory requirements.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) to comply
with the Code Provision on board diversity. The Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board
has the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills. In
identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee will consider
candidates on merit and against the objective criteria with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. During the year, there were no
additions to the Board.

ZE-REFER

REEES

ARBEKRIREEREE  YE@MAIAHEA
REESE FEHPEBRELEE - =2
ZEgZI2RERNE

1. RNEFE2EE - RERMEK - IR
VERERESHIRLEBER WE
BEHEGHEBATETESEREZA
T WEEREBBATEAEESIG
tMESSRLEBER  fTZBIIE
HITEE 2B UNREBEEZE
FHIEHEZAERES(LERER KT
B ) BETE 2 EREERNESS
REEBER - Tm%%ié\?ﬁli =
BT - REENEREFTERRITE
N

E>

2. REREFEVE  BMEEMOFER
%Ai CARFHEEREZEE - IRBZ
BEECRMAAATUER %i\%$‘\1l§i
AZER| - BEBRIREAZER &
ESIE: A A Nﬁzﬁﬁ'aﬂﬂiﬁm/im
HEERE °

EESCEM—BEEFTELLBER (%K
FDANBFTHEEFE L T2 FRE -
ZEREEAENESEZ LML ZH
F - ABREFSABIRRT  KREE
BREBZEARE - 2E(ETRR) R - F
@“ MIERBEES %W%~ I INEsT

CIRELZEEVMERBEAER  EXEA
E%/\ EHRE ILA%EE(IM#ZEB BERESE
EREZTIEMNETZ - TR EESWRE
IR E o

BREZERERAT

17



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRSE

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent EZZEGRFH=FBIIHNITES (AIE
non-executive Directors namely Dr. Huan Guocang (Chairman), Mr. Lo BIEBE T (EF) BRELERARLE)AE
Ka Wai and Mr. Wu Fred Fong. During the year ended 31 December X ° REZ T —RFE+T_A=+—HILF
2016, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The attendance of &' IEBRZEERRIT—AEH ° MR

individual members was set out in the following table. BEXELFGRZIEN
Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HESBRE
Name HE FEREESERY
Dr. Huan Guocang EREEL 1/1
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERERL 1/1
Mr. Wu Fred Fong HHRSE 1/1

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the &L W RELZEERIESFTENEZBEK -
composition of the Board member.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION BEET &
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remunerations payable RHZEZE_-ZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE -
to the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, are set out as follows: ERARBZEMB B L EEREFAIER

FIBRARZMEHINWT

Fee payable

&

HK$’000

Services rendered RARE FA&T
Audit services EAZRTS 1,400
Non-audit services EEIZARTE 479
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority and duties. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and review
and monitor their independence and objectivity as well as the
effectiveness of the audit process;

2. 1o approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors, maintain appropriate relationship between the Group and
the external auditors and develop policy on the engagement of the
external auditors to supply non-audit services;

3. to ensure the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements and any significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them; and review the external auditors’
work, including management letter and management’s response;
and

4. to review the Company’s internal control and risk management
systems.

Currently, the members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Lo Ka Wai
(Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Wu Fred Fong. During the Year
ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
the attendance of individual members was set out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

HESBRE

Name HE RERLEERRY
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERERL 2/2
Dr. Huan Guocang EEEEHL 2/2
Mr. Wu Fred Fong AR A 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had no
disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Or Wing Keung, the Company Secretary of the Company, is a
full time employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Chief
Executive Officer and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

A sound and effective internal control system is important for the Group
to safeguard investments of the shareholders and assets of the Group.
The Board, through the Audit Committee by appointing a professional
consultant has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system and risk management covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group.

The following sets out the Group’s activities against the Group’s internal
control procedures and risk management. The Group has imposed
the Internal Control Procedures Manual which comes effective in
March 2013 and revised in January 2016. The Board has reviewed the
internal control and risk by effective communications within the Group,
accountability, adequate incentives and respective competency.

WORK DONE FOR IDENTIFYING RISKS
The Group uses the following methods to identify the Company risks:

Annually enquiries to Department Heads about
their observations of risks and knowledge of
risk management procedures.

Enquiries

Company Records Review the following Company documents to

spot Group’s risks exposures.

- Committee’s meeting minutes
- Management plans and reports
- Policy documents

- Contracts

- Proposals and agreements

On-Site Inspection Discuss face-to-face with the Group’s
personnel to better understand the extent of

the risks.
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INTERNAL CONTROL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors represents the shareholders’ interests in
maintaining and growing a successful business and optimizing long
term financial returns. The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall
strategy as well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of
the Group.

Our Board of Directors has overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, while management is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement an internal
controls system to manage risks. A sound system of internal controls is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Board has delegated to management the design, implementation
and ongoing assessment of the system of internal controls, while the
Board through its Audit Committee oversees and reviews the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management procedures that have been in place. The
Audit Committee reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually, and
the risk management and internal controls in place to address those
risks. Qualified professionals within the business maintain and monitor
these systems of control on an ongoing basis.

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The scope of internal control relates to three major areas: effectiveness
and efficiency of operations; reliability of financial reporting; and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Group operates within an established control environment, which
is consistent with the principles outlined in Internal Control and Risk
Management — A Basic Framework issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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INTERNAL CONTROL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

The Group has written and imposed an Internal Control Procedures
Manual (“Manual”).

The purpose of this Manual is to provide guidance to enable employees
to comply with the relevant laws, rules and regulations that govern the
conduct of the business. This Manual also sets out certain in-house
procedures and practices that employees must follow when conducting
business on behalf of the Company, together with the outline of the
applicable laws.

The Group is committed to observing all relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements that may apply to the Company’s business
activities. As part of its commitment, the Company:

- has prepared this Manual to expressly set out the relevant
procedures, monitoring and reporting process the Company has
adopted to ensure compliance with the applicable legislation, rules
and regulations; and

- shall review this Manual annually to evaluate its adequacy and
the effectiveness of its implementation in light of the issues
arising during the previous year, development of the Company’s
business activities, and change in applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

For Inside information, the Group has no written policy but certain
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Group, which include:

- The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees (mainly senior management and directors) on a need-
to-know basis. Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality

- All employees (including directors of the Group) are required

to strictly adhere to the employment terms regarding the
management of confidential information.
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The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO.
Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that
confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements or circulars are not
false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through
the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a
clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive
and negative facts.

RISK ASSESSMENT

The Group continues to drive improvements to its risk management
process and the quality of risk information generated, while at the same
time maintaining a simple and practical approach. Instead of setting
up a separate risk management department, we instead seek to have
risk management features embedded within the Company’s operations
(securities trading and asset management) as well as functional areas
(including finance, human resources, [T, and legal).

On an annual basis, department heads review and update their risk
registers, providing assurances that controls are both embedded and
effective within the business.

Discussion sessions with all department heads led by the Chief
Executive Officer were held, with the view to further enhancing the
overall risk assessment process.

CONTROL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s business involves well-established business processes.
Control activities have traditionally been built on top-level reviews,
segregation of duties and physical controls.

Over the past few years, we have been formalising and documenting
the control processes in policies and procedures. Written policies and
procedures with defined limits of delegated authority are in place, which
facilitate effective segregation of duties and controls.
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A greater use of automation (information processing) is also being
implemented. The departmental budgeting and planning process is one
of the Company’s key control activities, which has been refined to take
into consideration risk factors.

All operating units prepare their respective operating plans pursuant
to corporate objectives for consideration. In this process, they are
required to identify material risks that may impact the achievement of
their business objectives. Action items to mitigate the identified risks are
developed for implementation as well as for finalising the budget and
business objectives.

A departmental budget with financial targets, as approved by the
management, provides the foundation for the allocation of resources.
Variance analyses are regularly performed, and reported to management
and the Board. These help identify deficiencies and enable timely
remedial actions to be taken.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s compliance team works closely with the company
secretary and legal advisor regularly review adherence to relevant
laws and regulations, Listing Rules compliance, public disclosure
requirements and the standards of compliance practices.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT RISK CONTROL

The Board is responsible for its decision covering overall strategy of
the Group, major acquisition and disposals, annual and interim resullts,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
approval of notifiable transactions under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and other
significant operational and financial matters.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including audit committee, nomination committee

and remuneration committee.

Each Board member has to sign and understand the roles and
authorities of Board members and senior management.
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EMPLOYEE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s ethical practices are set out in the Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics (the Code), available at the Group’s internal websites,
for all Directors and employees. A number of accompanying policies,
guidelines and procedures covering anti-bribery, gifts, entertainment
and hospitality, declaration of interest and whistle blowing were created
to set a framework for the management to make decisions and comply
with both the ethical and behavioral standards of the Group.

All employees are required to abide by the Code and they must apply
business principles and ethics which are consistent with those expected
by the Board and the Company’s Shareholders and other stakeholders.
Training sessions are regularly held throughout the Company’s
operations to reiterate the Company’s zero tolerance approach to
bribery and the importance of proper business ethics. Any ethical
cases or concerns raised through the Company’s guidelines on whistle
blowing and reporting of concerns are investigated independently.

PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY

The Group has acquired sufficient professional indemnity for its directors
and officer in case of legal proceedings so as to cover the risk to
litigation for tort.

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL EFFECTIVENESS

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board considered
the internal controls system are effective and adequate. No obvious
weakness or significant areas of concern that might affect the financial,
operational, compliance controls, and risk management functions of the
Group were identified. The scope of this review covers the adequacy
of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the auditors of the Company, Messrs. BDO Limited, about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report on page
48 of this annual report. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as at
31 December 2016. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at least 20
clear business days’ notice is given. The chairman and Directors are
available to answer question on the Group’s businesses at the meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the
resolutions put to vote at the annual general meeting will be taken by
way of poll. The chairman of the annual general meeting will explain the
detailed procedure for conducting a poll at the commencement of the
annual general meeting.

Shareholders who have enquiries to put to the Board may write to the
company secretary of the Company at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Suites 4301-5, 43/F., Tower 1, Times Square, 1
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries. For the avoidance of
doubt, the shareholder(s) must provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order that the Company can give them a reply.

The Group values feedback from its shareholders on its effort to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions are always welcomed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has not made
any changes to the Bye-laws. An updated version of the Bye-laws is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INTRODUCTION

As a financial service company that provides a range of financial
services including securities brokerage and advisory, as well as asset
management and fund management. Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited
(referred to as the “Group”) is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporation while maintaining high quality standards in our
service and operations. We consider social and environmental
responsibilities as one of the core values in our business operations, we
strive for greater sustainability and transparency, as well as to deliver
service that foster a sustainable environment for future generation.

This report summarizes several subjects of the Group’s business
practices for the ESG and its relevant implemented policies and
strategies in relation to the Group’s operational practices and
environmental protection.

The reporting period of this report is from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The report follows the ESG reporting Guide, as set out in Appendix 27
to the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The report content is focused largely on the Group’s headquarter
office and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, unless stated otherwise.
Hong Kong’s operations represent the majority of the Group’s social,
environmental and economic impacts.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We have maintained close communication with our stakeholders since
our listing. Through multiple discussions and direct communications, we
understand the issues that matter most to our stakeholders.

The recognition of sustainable development and environmental reform
are the most fundamental elements to the operation of the Group;
as well as the relationship and happiness of all our employees have
became the leading priorities in the Group’s operation.

ZE-REFER

]

RRERBRAR(AKE])  ES—FHE
BRBABRE-RIEBRY - BRES
RIENEAANREEEENESEE - X%

BENRERKSRBERFELE - RKR
BPIWIRT R ER TR E EKE - HAR
REERREEENARMALERBZL
BEZ— BRAZHERESNAFERER
IKFEFGERE R £ F—REER
BRREMNER FRHIR -

AHEFAARERIRE  HENERZE
BERZETEERARAKREZETER M
RIGIRE 2 B HBOR KRR o

AREZREBHEAE = NFE—H—H
E:;—ﬁ¢+:ﬂz+—ao

RENELR
KREDIRBEDBHEIZFTER AR ([H

P ER_ETARBIM SR — P ECGRIR -
HERERBEES IRE

HEE

BIERBHRA  ARE %E%‘é%qﬂﬁf\%/’é
ZAREEBERPREREWMB AR - FEZ
EBEAEELE I&E%&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’]%@ﬁ
ik

ERFIfE

BEMNKR B —EERMOFOEER
BYNER - BRZINFwm N EEER - M
WX i R 55 () & S AR D T R o

AEERAAFEERLVRERERAEHE

EENREANER AR EAKBEZE
o 2RETHRERERERENAETZE

BREZERERAT

27



28

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIS - B RERHE

The Group is dedicated to fair and equal treatment in all areas of human
resources, including recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, working hours, benefits and welfare.

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is aware of the direct environmental impact created from
the operation of our working office and branches, thus the Group
encourages our staff to not just think, but also act green. Employees
are being reminded regularly to protect our environment through varies
channel, including emails, notices and promotion slogan. Energy usage
and paper usage are the greatest environmental impact of our business.
In order to be a responsible company, the Group is committed to fulfill
sustainable development and promote preservation of resources with its
environmental responsibility. We strictly comply with all appropriate laws
and regulations of Environmental Protection Department.

USE OF ENERGY

Our operations generated green house gases indirectly by electricity
consumed to power our facilities. We have committed to minimize
our energy usage. The commitments are driven by our energy saving
program. We encourage and remind our staff frequently to:

° Turn off the night and air conditioner when leaving the company.
° Every computer was set to power saving mode, if computers did
not detect any movement for 20mins, monitor will be shut down

to save energy.

° Every electronics facilities will be turned off or switched to energy
saving mode when they are not in use.

° Energy efficient lightings were installed across all our offices and
branches.
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ENERGY SAVING CHARTER

We have signed the Energy Saving Charter in 2016 imposed by the
Hong Kong Government. The Group has pledged to support the
Charter with the scope:

° to maintain an average indoor temperature between 24-26°C
during the summer months from June to September in 2016.

° to switch off electrical appliances when not in use from June 2016
to May 2017.

° to procure energy efficient appliances from June 2016 to May
2017.

USAGE OF PAPER

Consumption of paper significantly draws negative impact to our world.
Voluminous paper consumption leads to deforestation. Serious efforts
are needed to ensure that the environment is protected. With the aim
of minimizing the impact of our business operation on the environment,
the Group implements measures for environmental protection that
minimize our paper usage at our office. We strive to use paper in the
most efficient way and make it convenient for staff and clients to do
so0. We provide paperless billing options for clients and have imposed
smart printing modes for staff. We encourage our staff to use electronic
communications for directories, forms, reports and storage when
possible. Lastly, we recycle paper, carton box and envelope we have
used, including all non-confidential documents from the Group.

MAXIMIZE LIFESPAN OF OFFICE STATIONARY

The procurement and disposal of office stationary serves another focus
of our operational sustainability efforts. The office stationary has a great
hidden environmental and social impact across its product life. The
impacts arise from its production and use to eventual disposal. We
aim to maximize every stationary lifespan by searching opportunities
to reuse and refurbish them internally whenever feasible. We purchase
reusable stationary whenever it is possible, such as Refillable Rollerball
Pens and correction type.
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

With the aim of minimizing the impact of its business operation on
the environment, the Group implements measures for environmental
protection, including using energy efficient appliances and equipment to
achieve additional energy savings and reduce gas emissions, operating
lighting control systems for regional power supply based on actual need
and recycling used papers regularly.

The waste produced by the Group’s operation is mainly generated in
the daily life and by the operation of the office, including paper, plastic,
glass, and kitchen waste. The Group assigned an administrative staff
to manage and transport the wastes and recyclables for both Garbage
and Recycled Waste pick-ups.

The staff duties include but not limited to the following:

° Organizing, maintaining and cleaning the garbage and recycled
waste holding areas.

o Sorting recycled waste into appropriate receptacles, educating
employees on sorting methods if needed.

° Placing appropriate signage on walls and bins, stating what type
of waste or recyclable should be placed in the bin.

° Ensure that no garbage is to be placed on building colonnade
areas.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We believe building strong and lasting relationship with our employees
and suppliers is essential to our on-going commitment as a socially
responsible miner. Besides, maintaining an honest and authentic
dialogue is indispensable to be a responsible organization and partner
to our stakeholders.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive level and are
rewarded according to their performance and experience. The promotion
and remuneration of the Group’s employees are subject to review
regularly. Remuneration packages include holidays, medical scheme,
group insurance, mandatory provident fund and discretionary bonus.
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To maintain the best people in our operation, the Group subsidies our
staff to study and encourage them to take any relevant examinations. In
addition, we have continued to organize work-life balancing activities for
employees, such as lunch buffet, Christmas party and different kinds of
gathering among staffs are organized frequently.

In contrast, the Group discourages and disallows any behavior that
violates the regulations under staff handbook. Offenders will receive
warning, and the group has the right to terminate employment contract
with offenders for serious violations.

During the reporting period, the Group did not find significant violations
of laws and regulation relating to human resources.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate
on the basis of personal characteristics, gender or age. The Group
has Staff Handbook outlining the terms and conditions of employment,
expectation for employees’ conducts and behaviors, employees’ rights
and benefits. We establish and implement policies that promote a
harmony and respectful workplace. With the aim of ensuring fair and
equal protection for all employees, the Group has zero tolerance on
sexual harassment or abuse in the workplace in any form, which is a
violation of the HK laws.

In addition, the Group strictly prohibits the employment of children or
forced labor and sets out the policies in our labor code to eradicate
child labor, juvenile workers and forced labor.

The chart presented in Table 1 represents the distribution of the
workforce population for five different age groups. In 2016, the
number of employees at the middle age group, ranging from 41-50
was 18 people (32 percent of the total workforce); while the younger
working-age population, ages 21 to 30 and 31 to 40, made up of 16
persons and 15 persons respectively, which add up to 56 percent of the
total population. In contrast, the two older working-age groups, ages 51
to 60 and 61 to 70 only accounted for 3 and 4 people respectively.
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Table 1: Workforce by Age Group, 2016
x1: ZE-REFEAFREEBEAH

Age 31-40 27%
31-405% 27%

Age 21-30 29%
21-30%% 29%

Source: The Group

The Human Resources Department will also conduct a comprehensive
recruitment review process to ensure that the data provided by the
candidates are accurate and will regularly review the existence of
employment of children and forced labor.

During the reporting period, the Group did not find any cases of violation
of laws and regulations relating to the prevention of children or forced
labor.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment as we believe that employees are the valuable assets of an
enterprise and regards human resources as its corporate wealth. We
offer comprehensive health care coverage for our entire employee.

We always place our workplace safety as our top concern. The
Company works hard to provide a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment and has complied with the Labor Law and other
applicable regulations. The Group also has established a variety of
security policies and set the relevant management mechanisms for the
major security risks.

The group has regularly arranges emergency drills such as crime
prevention seminar, first aid, fire fighting, evacuation, leakage and
escape to improve staff safety awareness. The Group has implanted
and communicated fire safety to its staffs and employee must strictly
abide by these instructions.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

32% Age 41-50
32% 41-50 3%

5% Age 51-60
5% 51-60 5%
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In addition, we have continued to organize work-life balancing activities
for employees, implemented green projects at our own premises and
carried out other activities to promote healthy living practices. Health
and safety communications are provided to employees to present the
relevant information and raise awareness of occupational health and
safety issues.

During the reporting period, the Group did not find any case of
violations of laws and regulations in relation to the health and safety of
the workplace.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group regards our staff as the most important asset and resource
as they help to sustain its core values and culture. The Group is
committed to providing comprehensive on-the-job training programs,
which collectively serve as a platform to encourage staff to develop
potential and self-improvement.

The Group has offered training activities and encouraged staff to attend
external training courses to develop personal skills. The Group has out
sourced training courses to staff for continuous professional training.
The trainings include operation management, leadership skills, and
occupational health and safety.

LABOR STANDARDS

The Group established and implemented a “Staff Handbook” which
contains policies relating to relevant labor laws, regulations and industry
practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal, promotion,
working hours, dismissal, recruitment, rest periods, diversity and other
benefits and welfare.

The Company strives to ensure an equal and fair working environment.
The Group has strictly complied with the Labor Ordinance and does not
tolerate any form of sexual harassment, harassment and abuse in the
workplace, which is a violation of the employment law in Hong Kong.

The prohibition of child labor and anticorruption practices are also set in
accordance with all relevant laws and regulations that applied in Hong
Kong. The Group has strictly complied with the all rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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OPERATING POLICIES

The Group established supplier management system to ensure
operations are fully complied with the law of Hong Kong in relation to
social and environment aspects in the most sustainable manner.

FAIR AND OPEN COMPETITION

The Group promotes fair and open competition that aims to develop
long-term relationships based on mutual trust. We ensure that all
parties involved in the procurement process participate fairly, honestly
and in good faith. We recognize that adherence to the principles of
competition is essential to the maintenance of the integrity of the
clothing procurement process.

PUBLIC INTEREST AND ACCOUNTABILITY

We endure our services is conducted in a manner consistent with the
highest ethical standards. This helps ensure high products quality at all
times to gain the confidences of customers and the public.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We have incorporated anti-corruption requirements in our staff
handbook. We are committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. Employees at all
levels are expected to conduct themselves with integrity, impartiality and
honesty. It is every employee’s responsibility and it is all interest of the
company to ensure that any inappropriate behavior or organizational
malpractice that compromises the interest of the shareholders,
investors, customers and the wider public does not occur.

During the reporting period, the Group did not find any cases that
violated the relevant laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a corporate citizen, the Group is committed to participate in the
community events to the improvement of community well-being
and social services. The Group believes that by encouraging staff
to participate in a wide range of charitable events, concerns for the
community will be raised and boosted, which would inspire more people
to take part in serving the community.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SUSTAINABILITY

The Group understands the importance of achieving economic,
environmental and social sustainability for the long term success of our
business. Our sustainability guidelines lay out our principles and actions
for managing and performing ethically and sustainably, throughout our
operational flow. We will continue to deliver safe and quality services
served by our enthusiastic team members, without endangering the
environment. We will also continue to provide hearty service to our
customers and contribute back to the community.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

All management level has the responsibilities to maintain a good
corporate governance practices. Meetings will be held once the
management or the staffs notice any improvement on the practices or
needing to review on such practices.
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The Directors present their report and audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40
to the audited financial statements. Further discussion and analysis of
these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the group and an indication of likely future developments in the group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 4 to 9.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial
statements on page 57 to 175.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years and the year ended 31 December
2016, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated
as appropriate, is set out on page 176. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
50.5% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 22.7% of the Group’s total turnover. The Group is
a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.
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So far as is known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their
associates or substantial shareholders (which to the best knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the share capital of the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 September 2004
(the “2004 Scheme”). Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 15 October 2014, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2014 Scheme”),
the purpose of which is to enable the Group to grant share options to
the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group. Particulars of the 2004 Scheme and the 2014 Scheme
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. No
further option shall be granted under the 2004 Scheme but the options
granted under the 2004 Scheme prior to its expiry shall remain valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the respective grants.
No share option has been granted under the 2014 Scheme and the
movements of the share options granted under the 2004 Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2016 were as follows:
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Exercise price Outstanding at Exercised ~ Cancelled/Lapsed Outstanding at
Grantee Date of grant (HKS) Vesting period Exercisable period 1 January 2016 duringthe year ~ during the year 31 December 2016
RZB-AE RZB-AE
e i -A-H ) MER tZA=T-A
ERA RiiAH () RS 18 WAITE RERETE BEE/ &% WAITE
Directors
i
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, Wiliam 24/7/2013 0.1825 Ni 24/7/2013-24/7/2016 10,000,000 (6,000,000) 4,000,000) -
BIRAE ZI-SELACHER 01825 £ ZB-ZECACTRAE
S g =
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara 20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
B2int “Z-mERAZTA 02450 & ZE-RERAZTEE
“T-tERAZTH
Mr. Lo Ka Wai 20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
REEEE Z5-MERAZTH 02450 i Z5-PFRAZTHE
“T-tERAZTR
Mr. Wu Fred Fong 20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
HREE ZI-WERAZTH 02450 B e Iy e =
“F-t5rAZ1H
Employees inaggregate ~ 25/8/2011 0.2800 Ni 25/8/2011-26/8/2021 480,000 - - 480,000
EA3 ZE—F\AZTRER 02800 i “T--E\ATREE
“Z--F/\A=tEA
25/8/2011 0.2800 25/8/2011-24/8/2012 25/8/2012-25/8/2021 720,000 - - 720,000
Z2——F)\AZtRR 02800 “E—£)\AZTRAE —F-ZE/\BZtEAE
“T--FNA-tER ZE--%\A-tEA
24072013 0.1825 Ni 24/7/2013-24/7/2016 30,000,000 (30,000,000) - -
ZE-CELAZTEA 0185 & ZE-ECAZTMAR
Z5-tEtAZTRA
20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
Z5-MERAZTH 0.2450 & Z5-PFRAZTHE
“T-tERAZTR
Other grantees 24/7/2013 0.1825 Ni 24/7/2013-24/7/2016 20,000,000 (20,000,000) - -
EHEEA ZE-CECAITEE 0185 B ZZ-ZEAZTMAZ
e g =
113,200,000 (56,000,000) 4,000,000) 53,200,000
Total number of shares avallable for issue at year end date 113,200,000 53,200,000
REEEREATE ARG
Total number of shares available for issue as a percentage to issued shares 3.26% 1.50%
IEIRAAREREIRNEIN
>
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M - BERRE
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the REEYE - BEMRENFANZZEFHIE

Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the audited financial

statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2016 no reserves are available for distribution to
shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR’S SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. Huan Guocang
Mr. Lo Ka Wai
Mr. Wu Fred Fong

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Wu Siu
Lam, Wiliam and Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offers themselves for re-
election.

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of a compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The non-executive Directors have been appointed for a specific term
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year end 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares capital and underlying
shares and convertible bonds of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.05 EACH OF THE
COMPANY
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Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Directors Capacity Number of shares held of the Company

HARQF]
EEnE 514 FRsERMEE ERITRABDL
Mr. Wu Siu Lam,William Beneficial owner 9,395,354 0.27%

AR E BEmEAA
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LONG POSITION — SHARE OPTIONS e - BRE

Number of
Name of Directors Capacity Number of options held underlying shares
B 4 FREEERERE ARG BB
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara Beneficial owner 8,000,000 8,000,000
g2+ EnEEA
Mr. Lo Ka Wai Beneficial owner 2,000,000 2,000,000
‘ERERE BB A
Mr. Wu Fred Fong Beneficial owner 2,000,000 2,000,000

AR A EREAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executive had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or convertible bonds of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the convertible bonds discussed above and the share option
scheme of the Company, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
none of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FTERRRER

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H REAXQF]
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO EREHFMHAEKMIEI6KEFE 2 ETER
shows that, other than interest disclosed above in respect of certain ~ REGMIR - B EXFIREEME TES
Directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had notified &EZITHAE#EE 2= - THIRER
the Company of their relevant interests in the shares, underlying shares B & & AR RIKFER AR A GG  HHEKKD

and convertible bonds of the Company. KAk (E 2 2 HERERERS -
LONG POSITION — ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.05 EACH OF THE FRE-ZXLQFSRMEENGETZ
COMPANY LEIR

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity Number of shares held of the Company

LERA YN
REER 4 FEERGHE EBRITREES
King Lion Group Limited (Note 1)  Beneficial owner 1,011,000,000 28.54%

King Lion Group Limited (fzE1) Em#EAA

Mr. Lu Xing (Note 2) Interest of corporation 420,000,000 11.86%
AT AE (H5E2) controlled
RirEE R

Redhead Investments Beneficial owner 300,000,000 8.47%
Limited (Note 2) EmEEA

Redhead Investments
Limited (Pff3+2)

Front Riches Investments Beneficial owner 410,309,600 11.58%
Limited (Note 3) EnEBA

hEREARAR (EES)
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Notes:

(1) King Lion Group Limited is wholly owned by Smart Chant Limited which in
turn is wholly owned by Mr. Gao Yongzhi.

(2)  Redhead Investments Limited, is wholly-owned by Mr. Lu Xing, which
in turn held 300,000,000 shares of the Company. In addition, Mr. Lu
Xing also owned the entire share capital of Ascher Group Limited and
Headwind Holdings Limited which in turn held 100,000,000 shares and
20,000,000 shares of the Company respectively.

(8)  Front Riches Investments Limited is a corporation controlled by Mr. Hu
Yishi.

Other than the interests disclosed above, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO discloses no other person as having a notifiable interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and convertible bonds of
the Company as at 31 December 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has not entered into any other connected transaction or
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2016 which should be disclosed pursuant to the requirement of Chapter
14A to the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY ‘S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out in pages 12 to
26 of this report.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the valuable assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees as highly important.
The Group aims to continue to be an attractive employer for committed
employees and strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills.
The Group provides on-the-job training and development opportunities
to its employees and considers all valuable feedback from its employees
for enhancing workplace productivity and harmony.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third parties
to the Group. The Group is committed to maintain good relationships
with its customers and suppliers in the long run by adopting various
means to strengthen communication channels with them. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its customers and suppliers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed above, the
convertible bonds as disclosed in note 27 and share options granted
to a consultant as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 or subsisted at the
end of the year.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may sustain or incur or about the execution and discharge
of his duties or in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Company during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise its environmental impact by saving
electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the
Company in Hong Kong and the PRC while the shares of Company (the
“Shares”) are listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s establishment
and operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, the PRC and the respective place of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company is required to
comply with the Listing Rules and SFO.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s by-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable contributions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The audited results for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee comprises three members namely Mr. Lo Ka Wai (Chairman),
Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Wu Fred Fong. All of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been set up with written term of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. Wu Fred Fong (Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and
Mr. Lo Ka Wai.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has been set up with written term of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Dr. Huan Guocang, Mr. Lo Ka Wai and Mr. Wu Fred
Fong.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITOR

On 21 January 2015, BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”).

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditor of the
Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 were audited by
BDO Limited and the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 were audited by Deloitte. A resolution will be
submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as
the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wu Siu Lam, William
Director

17 March 2017
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EFE + +8522218 8288
{88 1 +8522815 2239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EATHRER11158
JKBRHD2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheng Yuan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 57 to 175, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
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BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position is interest
in an unlisted associate, Xinhua (Daging) Merchandise Exchange
Company Limited (“XHME?”), of approximately HK$72,334,000 as at 31
December 2016, comprises the Group’s share of net assets in XHME of
HK$33,653,000 and goodwill arising on acquisition of HK$38,681,000.
Included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is the Group’s share of profit of XHME for the
year ended 31 December 2016 of approximately HK$3,078,000 and
exchange loss on translating the financial statements of XHME for the
year ended 31 December 2016 of approximately HK$4,689,000.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Auditing 600 (“HKSA
600”), Special Considerations - Audits of Group Financial Statements
(Including the Work of Component Auditors), XHME is considered to be
a significant component of the Group, which should therefore be subject
to audit as part of our audit of the Group’s financial statements. We
have issued audit instructions to the component auditor and involved in
the audit of the component auditor as required by HKSA 600. However,
up to the date of this report, the audit by the component auditor has not
been completed and accordingly we were unable to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the Group’s share of XHME'’s profit and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the Group’s
share of net assets in XHME as included in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016 were fairly
stated and whether the information of XHME as shown in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements was properly disclosed.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continuea)

In addition, as disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had performed an impairment assessment of
its interest in associate based on a valuation with the assistance of an
independent valuer. The determination of such valuation was based
on an underlying cash flow projections as provided by XHME. Based
on the impairment assessment, the directors are of the opinion that no
impairment is necessary.

During the course of our audit, we carried out relevant audit procedures
which we considered necessary on the impairment assessment as
carried out by the Group’s directors; however, our work was limited
because we had not been able to obtain sufficient satisfactory audit
evidence as to the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used
for the preparation of the cash flow projections of XHME; as the Group
had not obtained the information that we considered necessary from
the local management of XHME.

Due to the circumstances as described above, there were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to obtain sufficient
audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the valuation of the interests
in XHME as at 31 December 2016 and we were unable to determine
whether any impairment losses were necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

RESRZE# @)

A - AR A SRR ME I8 IRE - &
SECEBGEMZHH TRE [HEY
HR B & N ml 2 ETTRIER S - BEAR
FAEESERNEAREE CAERERER
A o RBBUERHE - EFRATLIELRE

REZERERT  BEEEATEETRAR
Y BEEBESETRENGBLEZ R
BZER RN AR EFEARENE
R RETRRMA 2 HERRKR A E MR
BRATAMBEZERER &k BEEEN
AEFEAEHEEERGESRABLE
ZER > MBFZERTEXR

ERALRTRER - EERERAEMBS
MEZEGRERF URERESFHR_-F
—RNET A=t BRFEMER ZGE
S RABZERRE - M BEFREEHEEERDR
BEEBRREMNE -

EEEREBLGFMAGHEM 2T BEN
ZR(TBABRTER D ETER - BERZ
FRARFEZEAEEFFHERZIREZ [1EZE
MRt E AR & IR RAEC BE] — &P E
— S REFBGFAMAGZ [BES
stemErEsrRl) ([<7R1) - EFBUR &
CYEETTRIPZEMBREE - BF
BE BEMEGZERZERERENEER
A TIMRBERE RS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

VALUATION OF HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

The Group’s held for trading investments as at 31 December 2016
comprise listed equity securities of HK$135,110,000 and unlisted
investment funds of HK$97,047,000 which are stated at fair value
under HKFRSs. The Group determined the fair value of listed equity
securities based on their respective quoted market prices as at 31
December 2016. In respect of unlisted investment funds, the Group
had determined their fair value by reference to the value as reported by
the fund administrators as at 31 December 2016. These investments,
representing approximately 30% of the Group’s total assets, are a
significant item in the consolidated statement of financial position. We
identified the fair value determination of these investments as a key
audit matter because of its numerical significance for the current year.

Refer to note 3.11 for accounting policies, note 4A(lV) for critical

accounting estimates and related note 22 of the accompanying financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

VALUATION OF HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)
OUR RESPONSE:

Our work included, but was not necessarily limited to, the following
procedures:

° assessing the appropriateness of valuation techniques to ensure
it is consistent with the way a market participant would use when
pricing the investments

o comparing the net asset value per share of the investment funds
to monthly reports issued by relevant fund administrators

° reviewing the “Assurance Reports on Controls at a Service
Organisation” issued by fund administrators’ auditors for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to confirm there were no significant
exceptions in securities pricing or position reconciliations by the
fund administrators

° assessing whether underlying investments in the investment
funds and listed equity securities were stated in their fair value
in accordance with HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, by
comparing the year-end prices of investments to independent
sources

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not included the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair value in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKASs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKASs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate No.: P04434

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEBEEkEMZEIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FH&TT
Revenue Weas 6 69,475 405,678
Other gains and losses Hipllias & 18 7 24,342 46,919
Other income EH AUz A 8 2,522 1,756
Purchase of inventories for trading MEDEGEE
business FE - (224,074)
Staff costs BIARA 10 (47,286) (161,523)
Depreciation e (538) (1,036)
Finance costs LY VDN 9 (30,319) (34,936)
Other expenses Hih & (36,302) (50,374)
Share of results of associates DREE AR EE 3,078 (14,140)
Loss before income tax BRET B R A E 8 10 (15,028) (31,730)
Income tax expense FriSBiFZ 11 (1,879) (2,668)
Loss for the year FRER (16,907) (34,398)
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEk &
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently E &R EFHDIEE
to profit or loss Bm2IEE
— Exchange differences on translation - MEBINETE I TSR KR
of financial statements of foreign EEZELER
operations (5,162) (4,491)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year (5,162) (4,491)
Total comprehensive income FRAEZEWSRLEEE
for the year (22,069) (38,889)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEskAMEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
AL —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE FER FAT
Loss for the year attributable to: T &EEMFRESS :
— Owners of the Company - VNEIE 2PN (16,911) (34,385)
— Non-controlling interests — FEPERR R RS 4 (13)
(16,907) (34,398)
Total comprehensive income NT&EELEFA
for the year attributable to: EHUWRESEE
— Owners of the Company - NARER A (22,073) (38,876)
— Non-controlling interests - FEPE AR e 4 (13)
(22,069) (38,889)
HK cent HK cent
4l Al
Loss per share BREE 13
- Basic — HAK (0.48) (0.99)
— Diluted -#E (0.56) (0.99)

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARR R

As at 31 December 2016
RZB—RFE+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHxT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E S 15 575 1,046
Trading rights EE# 16 3,322 3,322
Goodwill EES 17 7,000 -
Interests in an associate N AN W T 18 72,334 73,945
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 19 - 3,667
Other assets Hib&E 20 1,730 1,730
Deferred tax asset FETIEE E 28 144 =
85,105 83,710
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EUERERR
and prepayments AR FE 5RIE 21 31,970 291,230
Held for trading investments HIEEBERAGRE 22 232,157 184,304
Current tax assets BNEATH IR & &= 1,413 =
Trust bank balances held on behalf REBZFES
of clients ZIEFEIRITHEER 23 301,145 51,381
Cash and cash equivalents Be MR ERIER 24 126,461 60,536
693,146 587,451
Current liabilities REEaE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 &AM ERTRRFK
LAK e E A 25 419,549 117,030
Borrowings BE 26 26,427 222 314
Convertible bonds Al ES 27 165,802 =
Current tax liabilities BNEAfi IR & (& 34 5,067
611,812 344,411
Net current assets REBEEFE 81,334 243,040
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 166,439 326,750
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Convertible bonds AR E 5 27 - 148,462
- 148,462
Net assets BEEFRE 166,439 178,288

B NFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PRI R

As at 31 December 2016
RZE—RF+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE TERT FET
EQUITY s
Share capital %N 29 177,128 174,328
Reserves e 32 (28,495) (13,842)
Equity attributable to owners AATEEAELER
of the Company 148,633 160,486
Non-controlling interests By 17,806 17,802
Total equity FESEE 166,439 178,288
On behalf of the Board REEFS
Wu Siu Lam, William Cheng Kit Sum, Clara
tHDH -5 290N
Director Director
E2 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company Non-controlling interests
LN LN 1 FERER

Share of ~ Convertible
et bond equity

Capital ~ Convertible ~ Contingent Share  Currency

=

Share Share Shareholder's  redemption bond equity consideration option translation Accumulated assetsof  reserve of Total
captal  premium* contribution* reserve*  reserve*  reseve*  reserve*  reserve’ losses* Total subsidiaries a subsidiary Total equity
-EkE
2 Az
EABE  TERES  GARE BRR  EREE HELD  TRKES

B%  BfEE  BRER e R fife i B ZER fit  REFE  WuAR it RigE

HKS000  HKGO000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKGO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKS000

TEn  TAm  TAm  TEn TR TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn TR TEn TR AR
|

At1 January 2015 R-F-1%-5-B 173568 26,170 7834 an 34,408 28943 12,692 (12 (287429 196411 23 17,792 17815 214226
Issue of shares Upon exercise of share options - RERREE MR 40 3204 - - - - (1,089 - - 2951 - - - 2951
Transactions with owners REEAZRA 40 3204 - - - - (1,089 - - 2951 - - - 2951
Loss forthe year EREE - - - - - - - - (43 (34089 (19 - (19 (3439
Other comprehensive income Hh2mEks
- Exchange difierences on translaion of - REBNEREB AR

financil statements of foregn operations EEENEE - - - - - - - (4491) - (4.491) - - - (4491)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EA2ERHESE - - - - - - - (4d01) (34385  (38876) 19 - (9 (38889
Transfer to accumulated losses BREZHFR - - - - - (B - - 23 - - - - -
Forfeiture of share options RUBRE - - - - - - (3142 - 3142 - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 R-B-EE+-A=1-A 174328 209,464 7,834 4 34,408 = 8,467 (4763 (289,729 160,486 10 17,792 17,802 178268
At1 January 2016 R=%-xF-A-A 174,328 209464 784 4m 34,408 - 8,467 (4763 (289729) 160,486 10 17,792 17,802 178,288
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options - REETRER T EMETRA 2800 11,588 - - - - (4,168) - - 10,220 N - . 10,220
Transactions with owners BEEALRS 2800 11,588 - - - - 4,168) - - 10,220 - - - 10,220
Loss forthe year ERER - - - - - - - - (ieg)  (16ot) 4 - 4 (16907
Other comprehensive income Hh2Eks
- Exchange difierences on translaion of - REBNEREBER

financil statements of foreign operations EEENEE - - - - - - - (5,162 - (5,162) - - - (5,16
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FA2ERALE - - - - - - - (5,162 (16911) (22073 4 - 4 22,069)
Forfeiture of share options RUERE - - - - - - (299) - 28 - - - - -
At31 December 2016 R=B-AE+ZA=1-R 1128 241,052 784 an 34,408 - 4001 (9925 (306347 148639 14 11,792 17806 166439

* These accounts comprise negative reserves of HK$28,495,000 (2015:  * ZERBRER=ZE—"F+=ZA=1+—H

HK$13,842,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 RAEPEIRN R 2 B FE28,495,000/8 T (=
December 2016. T—F4F : 13,842,000787T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hHEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities &EEEHFERESRE
Loss for the year FAEE (16,907) (34,398)
Adjustments for: FEE
Income tax expense Fris i > 1,879 2,668
Changes in net assets attributable to RElREESER
other holders of redeemable shares IRz kB A
of a consolidated investment fund EIEEEFECE (1,390) 2,811
Changes in third party interests in SREREREICE=R
collective investment schemes G e 1,019 =
Depreciation of property, 1 JE Y &
plant and equipment ZE 538 1,036
Dividend income g B U (2,500) (1,714)
Fair value changes on financial SREAREEESRMIA
instruments classified as held for 2 NHEES)
trading 3,667 (1,749)
Finance costs BB 30,319 34,936
Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 EWERFUREEE 221 -
Interest income from banks and others R1T R E M FBUA (22) (41)
Net losses on disposals of property, MEE -« BEMEE
plant and equipment ol igi= bt - 3
Share of results of associates paK(a] i A/NCI e (3,078) 14,140
Operating profit before working capital LBEERFEAEI
changes pd <Sviv 13,746 17,692
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other B 5 R H A BRI K
receivables and prepayments B FRER L (3gm) 259,536 (41,612)
Increase in held for trading investments ~ #1EE & R E LN (47,853) (112,346)
Increase in trust bank balances held REBEPRA ZEFRTT
on behalf of clients fEpAKE ) (249,764) (40,839)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 REAMBEARTUAK
and accruals FERTE R38N 257,121 79,502
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #X&Fr18, (FTH )B4 232,786 (97,603)
Dividend received B AR B 2,500 1,714
Interest paid EAFE (10,885) (10,814)
Interest received from banks and others B URER7T K H A Fl & 22 41
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B, BREFER (8,469) 156
Net cash generated from/(used in) AL TR (FTAE)
operating activities B FEE 215,954 (106,506)

62 SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

2016 2015
—EB-REF —T—ARF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FET FET
Cash flows from investing activities REFBFESRLKRE
Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of cash W iE — B A 7 (FOBR Y
and cash equivalents acquired) ZBEekBEeERER) 31 (7,046) -
Purchases of property, plant and BEWHE  BEMEE
equipment (81) (133)
Proceeds from disposal of HERHHERE
available-for-sale investment Z P8 5008 - 100
Proceeds from disposal of associates B & N B2 FTS 58 - 78
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - E MEE
plant and equipment Z iS58 4 =
Net cash (used in)/generated RETE (BT, Bris
from investing activities o FEE (7,123) 45
Cash flows from financing activites BEFERESRLTE
(Decrease)/Increase in collateralised EREE CRd) /180
borrowings (224,021) 57,830
Proceeds from other holders of SRERERTEIHMFEEA
collective investment schemes < FTSEIE 102,161 =
Payments to other holders of FEBRESEMFTAA
collective investment schemes (NG (43,136) =
Proceeds from issue of shares upon E RS AR HEIE T TR T B8 1 TAR (D
exercise of share options Z TS EIE 10,220 2,951
Proceeds from issue of redeemable shares  Z£1T4r AR EE S AED
of a consolidated investment fund IR 1A 2 FTiS 58 - 12,000
Proceeds from loans advanced from —BRRER—BE=FEN
a shareholder and a third party ERZF5R0E 31,040 =
Redemption of redeemable shares of BRmReiREERAED
a consolidated investment fund R (13,421) -
Repayments of loans advanced from BEE—BREBMNZER
a shareholder (5,000) -
Repayment of obligations under finance &% g & FH#)AE
leases - (32)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BETE (FTH) Pz
financing activities B FEE (142,157) 72,749
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBEEERER
and cash equivalents i, (ORd) B 66,674 (33,712
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REHZEE M
of the year REERIEE 60,536 94,467
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ R& &) ¥ Fri%
on cash held Revi® (749) (219)
Cash and cash equivalents at end REZZEER
of the year HeZEEEE 126,461 60,536
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place
of business is Suites 4301-5, 43/F., Tower 1, Times Square, 1
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in provision of securities brokerage and
financial services, asset management services, proprietary trading
and trading business.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 17 March 2017.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2016

In the current year, the Group has applied the new standards,
amendments and interpretations which are effective for the
Group’s financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 January 2016. HKFRSs include all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs has
no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are
not yet effective. The Group has not early adopted these new
or amended HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The directors of the Company
anticipate that these pronouncements will be adopted in the
Group’s accounting policies for the first period beginning
after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Information on new or amended HKFRSs that have not been
adopted early by the Group but expected to have impact
on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Other
new or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are not yet
effective and not adopted in advance are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7, DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

RAFAIREETERYBRE
ZA(TEHEMBREER D (&)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT 22 CHEMEERERZHTRE

66

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014), FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Under
HKFRS 9 (2014), all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of the subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value through profit or loss at the end of the
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9
(2014), entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
that is not held for trading in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014), FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of changes in the fair
value of financial liability that is attributable to change
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such
changes in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
(2014) requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT 22 CHEMEERERZHTRE

68

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014), FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9 (2014), greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transaction
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and
the types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principal of
an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will be effective for accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 (2014) until the
Group completed a detailed review.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

BT BB BREER (&)
BRI L ERE 9,
(ZE-—mE)2H#TA|(#E)
M—RErEERERE=RE
BEFERIFE 395 B AR E < ¥
HEEDE - BAMBHRELERE
S(ZF—MF) WA EE P&
ZRXGBHBIAERERE - LH
EREAGERERE P TAZTA
BRI AIES &t 2 SFRRIA R
Z BB BB 2R © Lok o A
AREERERNK[EBERER] 2
[RAI - B A BEPF G SRR
7 MERNSERERRRER
BB BT ©

BEMBHRELENFEIR(=F
—OF)ER=_T—-NF—-—HA—H
K2R GRTHIRAER - AR
AIEEEN - RIEKEREENH
SERAFE M (ZF—MF) Arse
SHAKECREENERAEL
REFEBREALE - Al - N
REBE AR A - HEEH
BMmEEREIR (—FT—MF) 2
FEFLAEAL AT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 15, REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which established a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15,
clarifying the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent consideration, as well as licensing
application guidance.

HKFRS 15, including the amendments, will be effective for
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group completed a detailed review.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG 2. RAFIT LB EBUERE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ZA(EBMBEREERD ] (&)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT 22 CHEMEERERZHTRE

70

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 16, LEASES

The HKICPA has published the new lease standard in May
2016. The new standard will have a significant impact on
many entities across various industries. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations.

From the perspective as a lessee, under the existing
standard, leases are classified as either finance lease or
operating lease, resulting in different accounting treatment.
Finance leases are required to be accounted for “On
Balance Sheet” (i.e. lease asset and corresponding liabilities
are recognised in the statement of financial position); while
operating lease is accounted for “Off Balance Sheet”
where no asset or liabilities are recognised and the lease
expenses are recognised on a straight-line basis along the
lease period. Under the new standard, “On Balance Sheet”
accounting treatment is required for all leases, except for
certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

From the perspective as a lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially
carried forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will be effective for accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2019. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 16 in the future will have
impact on the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 16 until the Group completed a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements on pages 57 to 175 have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impact on the Group’s
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2 to the
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEHBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 32 EXESHREGERE

72

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amount of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

(Continued)

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued
by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity. Goodwill is recognised initially as the excess
of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of any acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
any acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain. Subsequent to initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
(Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
exchange for the acquiree includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with any resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it
has power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights relating to the investee (held by the Group
and others) are considered. For a right to be substantive, the
Group must have the practical ability to exercise that right.
Control is reassessed when facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in
deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting
rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.
Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 ASSOCIATES 3.4 BT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, the investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amounts are adjusted for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of net assets and
any impairment losses relating to the investment. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees, including any impairment losses on the
investments in associates for the year, are recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income of the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

3.5

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are immediately recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company. All value are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
foreign exchange rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Continued) 35 SNBBE (&)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rate at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into
HKS$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in currency translation reserve in equity and attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate. Goodwill and
fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On disposal of a foreign operation involving loss of control
over a subsidiary or significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation accumulated in
currency translation reserve are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods, the rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest and dividend. Revenue is recognised, when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ for commission and brokerage income, they are
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant
contracts are executed;

(b)  for financial advisory and consultancy fee income; fund
and portfolio management and investment advisory fee
income; and handling fee income, they are recognised
when the services are provided;

(c) for fund and portfolio performance and incentive fee
income, they are recognised on the performance
and incentive fee valuation day when there is a
positive performance for the relevant performance
period, taking into consideration the relevant basis
of calculation for the relevant investment funds and
portfolios;

(d) for trading of goods and products, it is recognised
when the goods and products are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods and the products;

(e) for underwriting and placing commission income, they

are recognised when the obligations and terms under
the agreement have been fulfilled;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

3.7

3.8

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

() for interest income, it is recognised on time-proportion
basis taking into account the principal outstanding and
effective interest rate applicable; and

(9@ for dividend income, it is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

TRADING RIGHTS

Trading rights represent the eligibility rights to trade on or
through Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and the
Stock Exchange. Trading rights acquired separately are
measured initially at cost. The cost of trading rights acquired
in a business combination is its fair value at the acquisition
date. After initial recognition, trading rights with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The useful life of trading rights that is
indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful
life assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEHBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 39 V¥ - BEKRE

80

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss of the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment 15% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ estimated residual value, depreciation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.10 LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 LEASES (Continued)
THE GROUP AS LESSEE UNDER OPERATING LEASES

Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
over the lease terms as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS

B NFER

Financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets under a contract whose terms that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when, and
only when, the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement. On derecognition of a financial
asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount of assets derecognised and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEHBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

311 EMIAE)
A) ZHEEE)
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Financial assets of the Group are classified under (i)
loans and receivables and (ii) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date. Financial assets are classified as current
assets if they are expected to be settled within 12
months after the reporting date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling it in the near term,
or on initial recognition, they are part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value gain or loss
does not include any dividend or interest earned on
these financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

B NFER

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, loans and receivables are
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment of individual financial assets includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

() significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(i) it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(iv) granting concession to a debtor because of the
debtor’s financial difficulty.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEHBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

311 EMIAE)
A) ZHEEE)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or
loss of the financial period in which the impairment
occurs. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss on loans and receivables decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the financial period in which the reversal occurs.

Where the recovery of loans and receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the impairment
losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group considered that recovery of receivables
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against the receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account in respect of
that receivable are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

©)

B NFER

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs. When financial
liabilities are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value, less, in the case of financial liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only
when, the obligation under the financial liabilities is
discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified under
financial liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using effective interest method.
Management determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months from
the reporting date.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the host liability component, conversion
option component and other embedded derivatives
components (such as early redemption option) which
are not closely related to the host liability component
are classified separately into their respective items on
initial recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHHEBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3.1 £@MIA®E)
(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) (C) HHERES (&)

86

Conversion option that will be settled by the issuer
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments
is classified as an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the issuer other than exchanging
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of its own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative. Derivatives embedded
in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives if their economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contract are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability, derivative
and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and are amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity.

Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company) containing liability and equity
components and multiple embedded derivatives

Multiple embedded derivatives are generally treated
as a single compound derivative. At the date of issue,
both the liability and compound derivative components
are recognised at fair value. The equity component is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability and
compound derivative components from the proceeds
on issuing of the convertible bonds and is included in
convertible bond equity reserve within equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

B NFER

Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company) containing liability and equity components

and multiple embedded derivatives (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The compound
derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The
equity component will remain in convertible bond
equity reserve until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the amount included in convertible
bond equity reserve, the fair value of the embedded
derivative component and the carrying value of the
liability component at the time of conversion are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares of the Company issued).
Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible
bond equity reserve will be released to the retained
profits/accumulated losses and the difference between
the redemption amount and the carrying amounts of
the liability and the embedded derivative components
is recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares
of subsidiaries) containing liability and equity
components

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the proceeds on issuing of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the option for the holder to
convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the subsidiary,
is included in non-controlling interests within equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

3.

TEETEEME @)

3N EMIAE)

(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) (C) HHRES (&)
Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares BERERERE S AHE
of subsidiaries) containing liability and equity RIEZ (R 08 2 7]
components (Continued) ZER) (&)
In subsequent periods, the liability component of the REZEME - AIRKRESZ
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using BED HERAERN XX
the effective interest method. The equity component, BREHEKAAR - §EF AL
represented by the option to convert the bonds into BENBRAREBR 2EE
ordinary shares of the subsidiary, will remain in non- BRERZERIBD KEER
controlling interests. When the conversion option is TESEIERR R A o fin i I 4
exercised, the carrying value of the liability component BT RBEEaEHs 2
at the time of conversion is transferred to the non- REHEEREBITHEBAR
controlling interests as consideration for the shares of Iz KBS R E IR
the subsidiary issued. Where the conversion option oo W BRERIIH R R
remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance BT FEERESEZ
stated in the non-controlling interests will be released g RRREB RN Rt
to the retained profits/accumulated losses. No gain or B8 - BERE BRI
loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration of the ARG S EE -
option.

(D) OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (D) #HiHLHT A
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and E(REE)AEERKH
the net amount are presented in the consolidated BRER LR RHBMIT
statement of financial position when, and only when, M- ARBEHECHERSE
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to WERBRFHREAELEENF
offset the recognised amounts and intends either to KREREERGEEAEGER
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle TREERSRBEFRET
the liability simultaneously. A SE - FRAIREGR S IS

RRETZT °
(E) EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (E) BAEATA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES 3.12 FISH T RE

Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES (Continued)

TEETEEME @)

312 FAIEHETEE (&)

90

Current tax and changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and (b) intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either (i) the same taxable entity; or (ii)
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3.13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3.14 EERH
RETIREMENT BENEFITS BIKIEF

The Group participates in staff retirement benefit schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), comprising a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) and a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administered
funds. The retirement benefit schemes are generally funded
by payments from employees and the relevant group
companies. The retirement benefit scheme costs charged to
profit or loss represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes.

The Group contributes to the MPF Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s
employer contributions vested fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to
participate in the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme for their employees, organised by the relevant
local government authorities. They are required to make
contributions to the retirement benefit scheme at a specified
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and there are
no other further obligations to the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 314 EEEF (&)

92

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the reporting date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the reporting date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

3.15 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share options is ultimately recognised as an expense in
profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within equity.

If service or non-market performance vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market performance and
service conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of share options that are expected to vest. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of share options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 3.15 RBER(2)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO
EMPLOYEES

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share options are measured at their fair value. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO
NON-EMPLOYEES

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
services received, except that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case the fair value are measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the Group received the services.

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill and trading rights with an indefinite useful life are
tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there
is any indication that they may be impaired. Property, plant
and equipment and interests in associates are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the asset’s
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

B NFER

TR - BAERBRERE
R SRR BRERMEE - W
BRRENRE B R E RN T
HARS R RTTE » RIS BB AR
BRRZ SRSEBREREBEN,
REHEE o

BT IEE ZRAGERG 156

PTA R EUR B B A AT
ZIRBTIRAFEFE A2E
PR 2 B i 2 I HE M B &
E o REENRHBHELGE -
HEAET AMEAIBRT M IEM 5 R R
BiR (BN MHEERE

RI2HE -

BT HES Z KA FER G

218 B ISP A T ATIRA R ER
(302 5 B WARRS 2 A FE R
B - HOEATEREA B2
ERT - AAFESBEL 2 BA
TARAREEEHREE AR
AT E -

3.16 Hft & ER(E

BELEAERAERFHCER
RO EBFETRERNS R T
REAPRBRAREERERE
B EITRERR - W% - BE R
REA RO E R R 2 s A B
RETEEZREER LT REd
T TRUE DRI ©

BREZERERAT

93
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEHBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS (Continued) 3.16 Hft EERE (&)

94

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs of disposal, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets or group of assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit, “CGU”). Goodwill is allocated to the relevant CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at CGU level. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment loss recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss
is charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGUs, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal, if measurable;
and value-in-use, if determinable.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

AR [ & 5R A TR (RBR TSR
HERA) BEREEMED 2R
=& o RFHAEREER - BaHR
KHEeRERARRBETSHE
BRREEREEZRERR 2T
HZBRBATIRE  FHREHER
B RAESUEARRR S RER
AHTIAEE -

SRHEREM S - E—REEME
HEZBHRERAERETBINE
tEERBEEMRMEL ZIRE R
A BIABEBY EARESRALZR
NEEMARN(AIReELEM R
SELEMN])BEANKROEE - B
HESKENBEREELEEN
BRZANBBELE 2 HRIRE -
At - 88 0 & E 8 Rl 17 R E R
& BoREREEEENERE
TR - BRI EESERER—=
ZABEER  CEEENNEE
ERReELEN - B8 - BIRE
RXEEODRERBEAENMERM—
B NEEEZ &/ REELEM
Al o

BEBRREEXEMBRSES
BluzREERSEAKRE SR
TR - BISHER /X - REDE
BB RS ELBAERZRMER
B YIPRTAREZERE - BRE
ERmER T SFEMEERNE @R
RNFERHERAR (A EHE) &
EREE(AAEE)IN - EFIE
SREBRZL A BReELEN
ZEHMEER ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods may no longer exist or may
have decreased, there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of the asset or the CGUs and only to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset or the CGUs does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss
been recognised. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.17 RELATED PARTIES

(@

(b)

ZE-RFER

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

U)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(i)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEERME#)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.17 RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 317 BBEAL (&)
(b)  (Continued) L) (&)
(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBAR—F=7
party. ZREDRE-
(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HEBREE=-FE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. BeaahsxE mMa—
ERAZE-AEREY
BN A o
(V)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (Vv) ZEBENASENA
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an rEBBERECERE
entity related to the Group. EE AT AZRIKE
FETEl
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZERX(@BATAL
person identified in (a). PRIk RIEH o
(vii a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vi)  @@)IBFTIA THZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEABEAXES W
key management personnel of the entity (or of a RZEE (_JZ*Z;E\ i
parent of the entity). BAR)ZEEEEA
BZHKE -
(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it (vii) BB E(IEKZE
is a part, provides key management personnel B—HXorsE5BXER
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent. A RAEE AL B
NEREETBEREAS
PRTE ©
Close family members of a person are those family members AT ZERSERTEAIZE
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, ZRANTHERBETEENEER
that person in their dealings with the entity and include (a) ETEBERASZAATHE R
that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (b) EKE  BRE@ZALTZFRIR
children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and Be Bk BB #1E  (0)iZ AL 2B
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or BRRAEHELFLX: ROZEA
domestic partner. TEZATZEBXRAEH BE2X

BA e
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(A) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. In addition
to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period and assumptions that have
a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

)

(1)

B NFER

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

The Group’s policy for impairment of trade and other
receivables is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables based on, among others factors, the
current creditworthiness, the collateral security and the
past collection history of each debtor. Management
reviews the impairment of receivables on a regular
basis.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT, TRADING RIGHTS, GOODWILL
AND INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

At each reporting date, the Company reviews
internal and external sources of information to
identify indications that any of the property, plant and
equipment, trading rights, goodwill and interests in
an associate may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. The sources utilised to identify indications
of impairment are often subjective in nature and
the directors of the Company are required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business.
Their interpretation of such information has a direct
impact on whether an impairment assessment is
performed as at any given reporting date.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

4. BARETHEE RHE &)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(A) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (A EBERETHEFTRERE)
(Continued)
() IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND (I 9% BMERZE EF

(1)

EQUIPMENT, TRADING RIGHTS, GOODWILL
AND INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, such
information is further subjected to an exercise that
requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount.
Depending on the assessment of the overall materiality
of the asset under review and complexity of deriving
reasonable estimates of the recoverable amount, the
Group may perform such assessment utilising internal
resources or may engage external advisers in making
this assessment.

Regardless of the resources utilised, the Group
is required to make many assumptions in this
assessment, including the utilisation of such asset,
the cash flows to be generated, appropriate market
discount rates and the projected market and regulatory
conditions. Changes in any of these assumptions could
result in a material change to future estimates of the
recoverable amount of these assets.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is mainly subjected to income tax in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision and the
timing of payment. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax expense is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and
practices. Where the final outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were originally
estimated, such differences will impact the provision
for income tax and deferred tax in the period in which
such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(A) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Continued)

(1)

)

B NFER

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible
temporary differences and tax losses will be recognised
when management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax expense in the period in which such estimate is
changed.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS AND VALUATION PROCESS

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
For financial instruments traded in active markets,
which included securities listed on a stock exchange,
their fair value is based on quoted market prices for
identical instruments at the reporting date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available, and those prices represent the
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. For financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market, which included unlisted
investment funds and derivative financial instruments,
their fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques. Specific valuation techniques used to value
these financial instruments included value as reported
by the fund administrators or other techniques, such as
valuations performed by external valuation specialists.
When the Group engage third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation, management would work
closely with the qualified external valuers. Detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in determining fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in note 37
to these financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BAESTHAFTR¥E &)

100

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(B) CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) FERETHEUR ZFARR K
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, RERARER 2 @FTEERR - RY

the directors are required to make judgements, apart from
those involving estimates. The judgements that have been
made and can significantly affect the amounts recognised in
the financial statements are discussed below:

)

DETERMINATION OF CONTROL OVER AN
INVESTMENT FUND

Management applies its judgement to determine
whether the control indicators set out in note 3.3 to
these financial statements indicate that the Group
controls an investment fund.

The Group acts as investment manager to some
investment funds. Determining whether the Group
controls such an investment fund usually focuses on
the assessment of the aggregate economic interests of
the Group in the fund (comprising any carried interests
and expected management fees) and the rights held
by others to remove the Group as investment manager.
For funds managed by the Group, the independent
board of directors of these funds is able to remove the
Group as investment manager without a cause, even
if the Group’s aggregate economic interests could be
more than 50%. As a result, the Group has concluded
that it acts as agent for the investors, and therefore
has not consolidated these investment funds. Further
details in respect of the unconsolidated investment
funds in which the Group had an interest are disclosed
in note 22 to these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(B) CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(I DETERMINATION OF CONTROL OVER AN

ZE-RFER

INVESTMENT FUND (Continued)

The Group also invested in other investment funds
which are managed by unrelated investment managers.
The objectives of these investment funds range from
achieving medium to long term capital growth and the
investment managers will apply various investment
strategies to accomplish those objectives. The funds
finance their operations by issuing redeemable shares
which are puttable at the holder’s option and entitle
the holder to a proportional stake in the respective
fund’s net assets. The Group holds redeemable shares
in investment funds which provide the Group with the
share of returns but not any direct decision making
power nor any direct voting right to involve in and
control the daily operations. As the Group is able to
remove the unrelated investment manager without
a cause, the Group has concluded that it acts as
principal in these cases, and therefore has consolidated
these funds. Net assets attributable to other holders of
redeemable shares of the consolidated investment fund
is included in “Trade and other payables and accruals”
in the consolidated statement of financial position (note
25) since these redeemable shares can be put back to
the Group for cash. The realisation of these net assets
cannot be predicted with reasonable accuracy since it
is subject to the actions of these holders. Changes in
net assets attributable to other holders of redeemable
shares of consolidated investment fund is included in
“Other gains and losses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (note
7).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BAESTHAFTR¥E &)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(B) CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) FERETIEOR ZEARYE (&)
(Continued)

() DETERMINING WHEN TWO SEPARATE () BEmEEVZZETAM

102

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ARE AGGREGATED
AND TREATED AS A SINGLE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT

When the Group entered into transactions with the
same parties at the same time involving two or more
financial instruments, significant judgement is required
in assessing whether these financial instruments should
be treated as a single or separate instruments and the
Group has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Factors considered include whether the contracts relate
to the same risk and there is no apparent economic
need or substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not have been
accomplished in a single transaction. Judgement is
made on a case-by-case basis to determine whether
these financial instruments should be accounted for
on an aggregate basis. For the convertible bonds
issued by a subsidiary of the Company and the profit
guarantee provided by two of the subscribers as
described in note 27 to these financial statements, the
Group had concluded that the risk is not identical and
there are substantive business purposes for each of
the instruments and therefore has accounted for these
instruments separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the Group’s
major service lines as follows:

(@ securities brokerage and financial services — provision of
discretionary and non-discretionary dealing services for
securities, securities placing and underwriting services,
margin financing and money lending services, corporate
finance advisory and general advisory services;

(b) asset management services — provision of fund
management and discretionary portfolio management and
investment advisory services;

(c) proprietary trading — investment holding and securities
trading; and

(d) trading business — trading of chemical products and energy
and minerals products.

No operating segments identified have been aggregated in arriving
at the reportable segments of the Group. Each of these operating
segments is managed separately as each of the service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing approaches.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZERER )
Securities
brokerage
and Asset
financial management  Proprietary Trading
services services trading business Total
BHELLER BE
SRRE EERE HEEE ES¥EE @t
2016 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-R TEr TEr TEx TERT TERT
. ___________________________________________________________________________|
Revenue I
From external customers REIREP 22,396 47,079 - - 69,475
From other segments REEHMHE 2,000 563 - - 2,563
Reportable segment revenue T F 7 & 24,396 47,642 - - 72,038
Reportable segment result AR WPEE 3,034 6,502 25,666 (3,285) 31,917
Impairment losses on trade B HIEBERR
receivables HEREE 221 - - - 221
Interest income from margin REFERER
financing and money B R
lending service F2MA 98 - - - 98
Decrease in net assets mAEREES
attributable to other holders AERRGNZ
of redeemable shares of a Hin¥ B AEIG
consolidated investment fund BEFERD - - 1,390 - 1,390
Increase in third party interests SREBETEZ
in collective investment schemes 88 = 7 iz 12 - - 1,019 - 1,019
Depreciation neE 187 64 17 57 325
Fair value gain on held for FIEEERGRE
trading investments Z AV ERE - - 28,082 - 28,082
Finance costs RERA - - - 1,707 1,707
Reportable segment assets MBS PEE 314,783 27,094 233,054 106 575,037
Expenditures for additions to N )
non-current segment assets* DEEEZHY " - 7,062 - - 7,062
Reportable segment liabilities T H{EFHEE 343,451 12,982 73,033 17 429,483
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZEER )
Securities
brokerage
and Asset
financial  management Proprietary Trading
services services trading business Total
BHELER BE
TR B IRG BEEE B 5% FCE
2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hF TAET FAET TAT TAT TET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Revenue 63
From external customers REINAEP 130,634 40,852 - 234,192 405,678
From other segments REEMSE 66 - - - 66
Reportable segment revenue T HR S EFU 130,700 40,852 - 234,192 405,744
Reportable segment result TR DI EE 14,230 6,939 4,286 (5,865) 19,590
Interest income from margin REFEMER
financing and money ERRB
lending service FBULA 2,911 = = = 2,911
Increase in net assets HAERERES
attributable to other holders AIEERRD
of redeemable shares ZEMIFEA
of a consolidated L EEFE
investment fund #m - = 2,811 = 2,811
Depreciation wE 701 25 17 62 805
Fair value gain on held for HEEERERE
trading investments 2 A TFENE - = 48,649 = 48,649
Finance costs AEKA 1 - 14 9,559 9,574
Reportable segment assets RS HEE 93,092 27,039 185,382 224,228 529,741
Expenditures for additions to REIE
non-current segment assets* PHEEHAS 118 = = = 118
Reportable segment liabilities AR FSHEE 75,329 18,678 21,968 222,356 338,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

ES

5.

—ERETZAS—ALEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments; other income (excluding
dividend income); directors’ emoluments; interest expenses on
convertible bonds and loans from a shareholder; share of results
of associates accounted for using the equity method; income
tax expense; and corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segments. Common expenditures are allocated
between operating segments based on proportion of segment
revenue where necessary. Inter-segment revenue are charged
on the expenses incurred by the relevant subsidiary plus certain
percentage.

Segment assets include all assets but interests in an associate;
current tax assets; deferred tax assets; derivative financial
instruments and bank balances of the Group. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment,
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarters. Segment
liabilities include all liabilities but loans from a shareholder,
convertible bonds and current tax liabilities. In addition, corporate
liabilities which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments are
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the

7 RPER (47

REBEKE DB PTE M BFEEREE
R BRERENN 2 T EHBEE 2 HER

financial statements as follows: (N

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—ARF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Reportable segment revenue Al ER R BB U 72,038 405,744
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 73 BP I R T 8 (2,563) (66)
Group’s revenue N SET 69,475 405,678
Reportable segment result Al RO EPEE 31,917 19,590

Changes in fair value of derivative PTHEEMI A

financial instruments NEEE) (3,667) 4,825
Other income EUgA 22 42
Finance costs BhE R AR (28,612) (25,362)
Share of results of associates DR E N T EE 3,078 (14,140
Corporate expenses* NS B (17,766) (16,685)
Group’s loss before income tax REBERFTSTHAIEE (15,028) (31,730)

Reportable segment assets Al RO EPEE 575,037 529,741
Interests in an associate REEE N R 2 72,334 73,945
Deferred tax assets TR IHE E 144 =
Current tax assets BNEATHIR & 1,413 =
Derivative financial instruments TESRBT A - 3,667
Cash and cash equivalents He MReZERIAHR 126,461 60,536
Corporate assets NE)EE 2,862 3,272
Group’s assets REFEE 778,251 671,161
Reportable segment liabilities ARmYHAE 429,483 338,331
Loans from a shareholder RE—BREZER 15,387 =
Current tax liabilities BNEAFIE & (& 34 5,067
Convertible bonds AR E S 165,802 148,462
Corporate liabilities NEBE 1,106 1,013
Group’s liabilities rEEBE 611,812 492 873

* XIBRETINAE BREEEH:
WREFREHENKEEERIEN
REMEXER

. mainly staff costs, including directors’ emoluments, minimum lease
payments under operating leases in respect of land and buildings
and other professional fees
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. ZEER (@)

Reportable
segment total Unallocated Consolidated
AR D BERE ROE =E
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-AF ZT-hF ZB-AE —T-0fF —B-XE —_T-1E
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERT FHET TR TET THERT TET
Other material items EttEEEH
Depreciation e 325 805 213 231 538 1,036
Finance costs BB 1,707 9,574 28,612 25,362 30,319 34,936
Expenditures for NEIERE
additions to BEZRXZ"
non-current assets* 7,062 118 19 15 7,081 133

TRIJIEAAKERBINATS 2
BRAREFRBEE ZHEVEER
£t o BEPMEMBETIRENEB A RER
PRSI D - FRBDEE MENET)
REBECERWE (NBYE  BE
K&tE) BEDBEFEBHAEL(NEE
PR R ) METFTE D (A0 B &
RA ) B e

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers and
the Group’s non-current assets*. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the subsidiary
operates. The geographical location of non-current assets* is
based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment, the location of the operations to which they
are allocated, in the case of trading rights and goodwill, and the
location of the operations, in the case of interests in an associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. ZERER#)

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets*
REIREE Z W= FREBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015

—XE “F-HF =R-AF “F-0F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT  TAT TER TR

Hong Kong (domicile)* B (GEftib) # 66,477 403,266 10,785 4,180
Mainland China B A3 2,998 2,412 72,446 74,133
69,475 405,678 83,231 78,313

* Non-current assets exclude derivative financial instruments, deferred * R EERBETESR T A

tax assets and other assets.

RIBEEENREMEE °

i The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in 4 RATA—RREEETMA T 1%
Bermuda where the Group does not have any activities. The Group BERE AT AN B A E i A
has the majority of its operations in Hong Kong, and therefore, Hong I NEBALDEBMNRES
Kong is considered as the Group’s place of domicile for the purpose A - BB SR MR 5 g 84T A%
of disclosures as required by HKFRS 8, Operating Segments. DEFAEEIIRENS » BEEEA

REE 2 5 o
The Group’s customers include the following with whom NEE T BEAFE T B FIEE A
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue: EBNZF10% T B ¢
2016 2015
—E—RE —EF—RHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THEx FHET
Customer A (note i) =P AKIEED - 234,192
Customer B (note ii) =P B (MizEii) - 67,566
Customer C (note iii) & F C (Fe#xiii) 15,782 N/A 7~ A

Notes: BT -

Revenue from this customer is attributable to trading business i REZEFZWETIBRESEBE D
segment TES

i.  Revenue from this customer is attributable to securities brokerage i. REZBEPZWHEIBRIFLLER
and financial services segment 2 RARTE 7 EBRTEL

i.  Revenue from this customer is attributable to asset management i. REZBP ZHﬂZmTJ HREEER
segment, revenue attributable to this customer for the year ended 31 DEFTE - BE —ARF+=A

December 2015 is less than 10% of the Group’s revenue for that year

ZE-RFER

=t— Etif!EZ%ﬁFiZHﬁlm
R FEAEBE WS 2 L HMER 10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

6.

REVENUE 6. W=
2016 2015
—B-RF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Commission and brokerage income BEX G2 e R
from securities dealing and KA A A R
handling fee income FEBKA 2,727 4,952
Financial advisory and R RFABERA
consultancy fee income 1,686 1,317
Fund and portfolio management and EeRREHEERE
investment advisory fee income AR % & A B UL A 47,075 39,703
Fund and portfolio performance and HERFEHEERIAR
incentive fee income HENVBIA 4 1,149
Interest income from margin financing FRMEREFRS
and money lending service 2 EHA 98 2,911
Trading of goods and products BEEYRER - 234,192
Underwriting and placing M EMT A
commission income 17,885 121,454
69,475 405,678
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HtsEREE
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT
Changes in fair value of financial PERAKIEEEZEM
instruments classified as held for trading ~ LTAZ A FEZ &H) 24,415 53,474
Changes in net assets attributable to FEREEEELD
other holders of redeemable shares of ip 2 Hfbis B A
a consolidated investment fund EILEEFEE 1,390 2,811)
Changes in third party interests in SREEHECZE=R
collective investment schemes s (1,019) -
Impairment losses on trade receivables Z SRR 2 RE R (221) -
Net foreign exchange losses HINPE &5 18 F R (250) (3,741)
Net losses on disposals of property, HEME - HER
plant and equipment B BB FRE - @)
Others Hith 27 -
24,342 46,919

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e P BHmERHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

8.

=

OTHER INCOME 8. HahlkA
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT THIT
Dividend income A% B U A 2,500 1,714
Interest income from banks and others SR1T R E AT B U A 22 41
Sundry income LT PN - 1
2,522 1,756
FINANCE COSTS 9. RERA

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T

Effective interest on liability AMRESFAGE S
component of convertible bonds ZEBFE 28,140 25,362
Interest on bank and other borrowings IRITREMEE 2 F 8 1,707 9,574
Interest on loans from a shareholder RE—BREZERZFE 472 =
30,319 34,936

—NEER BRIEIR AR QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BREFBHAIESE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Loss before income tax is arrived B PSR A ES 18
at after charging: BB THEIE
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A 2 1,400 1,280
Minimum lease payments under operating 3 M2 FAL & FA4)
leases in respect of land and buildings Z IR EFIAE 8,920 6,756
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments & T (BIEEEEE)
— Fees, salaries, allowances and bonuses - 4% ~ 4 -~ 2B NMIEAT 45,745 160,468
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — RRFRAET ST 1,541 1,055*
47,286 161,523

* The amount included forfeited contributions of HK$384,000 in respect
of employees who leave employment prior to such contributions
vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, Hong Kong
profits tax was provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for the respective years.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no provision for
PRC Corporate Income Tax has been made as the Group did not
derive any assessable profits in the PRC for the respective years.

Y ZEREREEREREFRERE

©atE 2 38 BB BUE SR B B SR 8
U 7 458 384,000 8 7T

FrigBipx

HE-_ZE—RErE_ZE—AHF+_HA
=+—HLEFE  BEANESREREESE
FE L EHER R R A 2 16.5% a1 e B o

HE_Z—XEFR-_Z—HF+=-A
=t+—HLFE  SEFXPELEFRS
FatieiE  RERASERSEFEE
W A P B E A R FERBLR A ©

2016 2015
—E-REF —ZET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Current tax - Hong Kong profits tax BNERBITE - HBREH
— Provision for current year - NEEEHE 2,036 2,668
— Over provision in respect of prior years - iBE FEBEEREME (13) -
2,023 2,668
Deferred tax IEAERIE
— Origination and reversal of -HRERZ
temporary differences EENED (144) -
Total income tax expense FriS iz ke 1,879 2,668

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and loss before

1. FiEHAx )

PS5 B S B BR PS5 AT S R IZE A A

income tax at applicable tax rate is as follows: K ZHERIOT ¢
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss before income tax BRETIS TR ES 1B (15,028) (31,730)
Notional tax at Hong Kong profits BEBNFHNE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (ZZE—FHF : 16.5%)
B ZERNIE (2,480) (5,236)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R EAM AARER AL L 2
operating in other jurisdictions B AR TRE 2 f 2 (208) (352)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BERRMAZ B2
tax purpose (3,775) (3,725)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A HIFRFA S 2 RS oo 22
tax purpose 5,616 3,598
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERIERLERIBEE 2
recognised as deferred tax asset REAREEEZRIETE 4,032 6,651
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised REEHAZBEFE
tax losses utilised this year REERTIAEGE
RS 817) (688)
Tax effect of temporary differences REBREGRMEER
not recognised G E 31 124
Tax effect of share of results of associates D {h B & AR EE 2 RS E (508) 2,333
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFERRERE (13) =
Other differences Hith=8 1 (37)
Income tax expense FTiSHi X 1,879 2,668

12. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was proposed or paid during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

B NFER

12. RS

BHE-_ZT-—RFER-ZE—HFT=A
=+—BIEEFE  EEFRENIRE
FEARE - BMEEHEAE B LARINE
FHIRB RS o

BREZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

114

13. LOSS PER SHARE

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$16,911,000 (2015: loss of approximately HK$34,385,000)
and the weighted average number of 3,511,160,917 (2015:
3,480,484,748) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$19,534,000 (2015: loss of approximately HK$34,385,000)
and the weighted average number of 3,511,160,917 (2015:
3,480,484,748) ordinary shares after adjusting for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year, calculated as follows:

(A) LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

13. BREE

BREXREE

BRERNBEDBEAQGHE AENL
E5 18 4916,911,0008 (= —HF :
E518#934,385,000/8 ) R FRNE BE1T
LB AR 2 hnfE 39 803,511,160,917 iR
(ZZ—FF : 3,480,484,748% )1 & -

BREEEER
BREEBERNERMEABEEENT
AR EBIELARERE  REBERARE
B AFE(GE184719,534,0008 L (=&
— R F : EE#434,385,000/8 7T ) & F
W AR 2 InAE - ¥9813,511,160,917
(== — A : 3,480,484,7480% ) &t
BT

(A) AL EIHEEAELER

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
For the purpose of basic loss FTESREREE (16,911) (34,385)
per share
After tax effect of effective interest HRTB R EIE L
on the liability component MR ES A ER D
of convertible bonds ZEBRAE 6,446 -
After tax effect of fair value changes IS 215 2
on the derivative component AR E S ITAE R D
of convertible bonds ZRNHEES) - -
Effect of earnings on conversion HI|ARR R M B AT
of convertible bonds issued by BT 2 TR ES
a subsidiary of the Company 2 BRzE (9,069) =
For the purpose of diluted loss FFESREEEE
per share (19,534) (34,385)

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 13. BREE (&)

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) BREEEER &)
(B) WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY (B) ZBEIRINEFTE
SHARES
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
Number of Number of
shares shares
i3 & E 4=
For the purpose of basic loss per share 5+&E G EAE1E 3,511,160,917 | 3,480,484,748
Effect of share options B2 - -
Effect of convertible bonds issued RARBITZ RRES
by the Company LR - -
Effect of contingent consideration FAREBRD 2 E
shares - —
For the purpose of diluted loss SrE SR EEE
per share 3,511,160,917 | 3,480,484,748

On 16 June 2014, Sheng Yuan Financial Services Group RZE—HWmFANA+T B
Limited (“SYFS”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the KRAR 2 &2 EMWEB A FSheng
Company, issued convertible bonds with the principal Yuan Financial Services Group
amount of HK$45,000,000 (details are set out in note 27 to Limited ([SYFS)) 1T A &8 A
these financial statements). Subject to attainment of certain 45,000,000 7T 2 AT AR (& 5 (5

profit conditions, these convertible bonds are convertible into
ordinary shares of SYFS at a conversion price of HK$10,000,
at the option of the holders of the convertible bonds, which
created a potential dilutive effect to the basic loss per share.
None of these convertible bonds are assumed to have been
converted into ordinary shares of SYFS for the year ended
31 December 2015 as it would result in a decrease in diluted
loss per share for that year.

B NFER

BN ZETHERERWT27) o B
ERE TRAEG - ZERRE
H 258 AIE IR E 10,000
BT R RESERAESYFS
TRR - B EERERNBEES
BUEBESTE -HE_T—AF
T A=+ HUEFETEBERZ
ERKRESDERASYFSER
R RARESERZFELER
EEEsERD -

BREZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 13. BREE (&)

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) BREEEER &)

(B) WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY (B) ZBIRINEFITE (&)
SHARES (Continued)
On 19 November 2014 and 30 December 2014, the RARIRZZE—HE+—A+1H
Company issued convertible bonds with aggregate principal RZZT—NF+ZA=+RH%TK

amount of HK$135,000,000 (details are set out in note 27 % 42 %4 /135,000,000 7 7T 2 A 32

116

to these financial statements). The computation of diluted
loss per share does not assume the conversion of these
convertible bonds as it would result in a decrease in diluted
loss per share.

The Company has outstanding share options, which
were granted on 25 August 2011, 24 July 2013, 19 June
2014 and 20 June 2014 with exercise price of HK$0.280,
HK$0.183, HK$0.250 and HK$0.245 respectively. The
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume an
exercise of these share options since it would result in a
decrease in diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2015 also did not assume the issue of the
Company’s contingent consideration shares of 556,585,714
in aggregate as the relevant profit target had not been
satisfied during the profit target period.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

BES (FHEER XY BRRM T
27) ° AT ESREEE R B RK
EZ%TWH%T#E?%LW RA %
HeSy g aEamnd -

$/“7%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ1§2ﬁ%ﬁ§% Ty
SPRR—_TE——FNA=-1+HAB -
—T-=ZF+A-+WE - -F
—MmMESNAtTABRE-_ZT—HNF
NAZTBEEL - 17#E/0.280
7 7T~ 0.1837 JT * 0.2507% 7t &
0.2458 7T - FTEGRESEEEL
ERRTEZSERE  REAAH
ER R EEERD

HEEHEE—_T-—RAFT_A=1—
HIEFE 2 SREEE BT &R
RETARRRZHARERNDE K
556,585,714 1% » [REA B & T B
ZHRZ BEKABBEF B IZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EERATZBREFALTHE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS EEMWE
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the ENMREMEAARIEZEES ML @5 M
directors of the Company are as follows: T
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
BARERIEE
e FHeR=ER it ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
2016 —E-RE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William AL REE 200 1,840 113 2,153
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara gaht 200 1,575 102 1,877
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Dr. Huan Guocang EEEEBLT 200 - - 200
Mr. Lo Ka Wai BREXE 200 - - 200
Mr. Wu Fred Fong HREE 200 - - 200
1,000 3,415 215 4,630
—T-REFIR BREREBRARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EERLEREHFALTHME &)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEME(#)

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
BARERIEE
e HeRERH it st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FET FTET

2015 —E-1fF

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William DRI E 200 1,850 113 2,163
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara ;R LT 200 1,590 102 1,892
Non-Executive Director FHTES

Mr. Xu Guocai (note i) B S A (P EEi) 263 - - 263

Independent Non-Executive BUFHITES

Directors
Dr. Huan Guocang (note i) EBEEL (M) 113 - - 113
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERELE 200 - - 200
Mr. Wu Fred Fong HREE 200 - - 200
Mr. Qi Wenju (note il BB AE (M aEiin) 78 = = 78
1,254 3,440 215 4,909
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or MESEIT U - UREXREHRE
agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the years ended BHE_ZT-—R"ER-FT—AF+=A
31 December 2016 and 2015. No emolument was paid by the =+t HUEFEZEAME - NEEW
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining ERAESENME - ERERSIREMA
the Group, nor as compensation for loss of office. REB KR MAREE 2 BB IER
BEREE o
Notes: PiiE -
Removed as non-executive director on 8 June 2015 i. REZZE—RFNANBHEERIERTT
E=
i.  Appointed as independent non-executive director on 8 June 2015 i. RZZE—RAFNANBEZREAREL
HNITES
i.  Retired as independent non-executive director on 22 May 2015 i. RZTE—AFRAA-+-HRAEBI
HHITEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE

14. EERLEBRESHFALTHME &)

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included two (2015: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2015: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:

AEBRSHALTHE

AEEAEBz AGGERHTALRIER
Z(ZE—RF - WMB)ES - HEZM
SR EXATRER - FRENHBT =5
AT (ZZ—FF : ZR) ZM&wT -

2016 2015
—E-XREF —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 8,400 7,360
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL 9,500 129,946
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  ERIEAETH 2K 414 374
18,314 137,680

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no HE-_Z-—REFE-ZT—AF+=H

emolument was paid by the Group to the above remaining three
(2015: three) individuals as compensation for loss of office.

The emoluments of these remaining three (2015: three) highest
paid individuals fell within the following bands:

=+ —HLFE - NEELER AR
T=%(ZF—h%F: =%) ALXNM
TR SRERAE -

HT=2(ZT—0F: =R)KSFA
TZMENFTIEE :

Number of individuals

A8

2016 2015
=F—XF .
HK$5,000,001 - HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T ~ 5,500,000 87T 2 -
HK$7,500,001 - HK$8,000,000 7,600,001 7T - 8,000,000 87T 1 -
HK$41,000,001 - HK$41,500,000 41,000,001 7T — 41,500,000 % 7T - 2
HK$55,500,001 - HK$56,000,000 55,500,001 7T — 56,000,000 % 7T - 1
3 3

BRERERAT

B NFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - MEKRR®E
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
BH - ®EB
HEMREE & "E #ct

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TET TET

At 1 January 2015 R-2-H5%—-A—H
Cost BEN 1,991 3,853 1,205 7,049
Accumulated depreciation REtITE (1,991) (2,667) (430) (5,088)
Net carrying amount RHEFE = 1,186 775 1,961
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE—Z—ff

+TZA=+—HLFE
Opening net carrying amount FHEREFE - 1,186 775 1,961
Additions B 22 111 - 138
Disposals HE = ©) - ©)
Depreciation e @8 (766) (262) (1,036)
Translation differences bE =% (1 @) ©6) 9)
Closing net carrying amount FRIRFE 13 526 507 1,046
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1F

+=A=+—H
Cost (DN 2,012 3,955 1,197 7,164
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (1,999) (3,429) (690) (6,118)
Net carrying amount AREFE 13 526 507 1,046
Year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE_-Z—AHF

+t-B=+—-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYRMFE 13 526 507 1,046
Additions NE 20 61 - 81
Disposals HE - (4) - @
Depreciation nE 27) 271) (240) (538)
Translation differences bE =5 (1) @) ©6) (10)
Closing net carrying amount FIREEEFE 5 309 261 575
At 31 December 2016 RZE—REF

+=B=+-—H
Cost DN 1,615 4,000 1,185 6,800
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (1,610) (3,691) (924) (6,225)
Net carrying amount REFE 5 309 261 575
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

16. TRADING RIGHTS 16. EEE
2016 2015
b AL —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
At 1 January and 31 December BR—B—HBR+=A=+—H
Gross and net carrying amount BREAENRFE 3,322 3,322

Trading rights represent the eligibility rights to trade on or through
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and the Stock Exchange.
The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the Group can use to generate net cash flows. As a result,
the trading rights are considered by the management as having
an indefinite useful life. Trading rights will not be amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
the trading rights is allocated to the CGU which engaged in the
securities brokerage and financial services.

Recoverable amount for the CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculation. The calculation use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a one-year period, and discount rate of 25% (2015: 24%). Cash
flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated for four years
using a zero growth rate. The growth rate is determined based
on management’s expectations for the market development and
is not expected to exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant business. Apart from the
considerations described in determining the value-in-use of the
CGU above, the Group’s management is not currently aware of
any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in its
key estimates.

B NFER

BEERENIELEETENERZMER
NEIRBRETERE CBAEN - B
ERUAKBEREL RS REFRL
HARI AT FE R 2 BRI o Et - BIEE
RESRESAEREATH EHE
RreHs BEEAERFHNEERE
R R - EREFRNHREMATR
BRE A RERERETTRERIR

sUREREME - BEERZREED K
ERFESFRC NSRBI ZREESL
EBfis o

REEABMN ] BIRESEIIREER
BEAEMEE ZAEETANUNER
Btz —FHMBERE R25% (=T
—RHF 24%) THREREM BN
ETEA - BB —FHREREKRTIE
REHEHNF - MREBBBEEEEY
MEEREHET  BHTHBAEH
THEIRATERE - RIS
KARTIA - R EE EEBERE 2
HERR -BREXMIBETRCELS
Uz ERBEMERZEARIN  AKE
BB BRI AR E T E A 7] RE &
pMHEERSEETEME -

BREZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZ

17.

T AF+-ASt+—ALFE

GOODWILL 7. B8
2016 2015
—B-RF —ZE-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
At 1 January ®—A—H
Gross and net carrying amount FRE 4 E &FE - -
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FHRREFE - _
Additions through business BREBEIRE (FH3E31)
combination (note 31) 7,000 -
Closing net carrying amount FIRAREFE 7,000 _
At 31 December B+=—A=+—H
Gross and net carrying amount ARE A E RFE 7,000 -

For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to the CGU which engaged in the asset management business.
Recoverable amount for the CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculation. The calculation use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
one-year period, and discount rate of 19% (2015: not applicable).
Cash flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated for four
years using a 5% growth rate (2015: not applicable). The growth
rate is determined based on management’s expectations for the
market development and is not expected to exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
business. Apart from the considerations described in determining
the value-in-use of the CGU above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEERBEARAME  BEBIEERS
EEEBEEBCRSELSEN - REE
Bz A B & B R A EER
EMET - ZitEFRUEREE#Z
— FHPEEER19% (T —HF
TER)FTHEEAEBR RS RER
Bl e BB —FHZHESNER%IER
R(ZE—RF : TER) HEHF - 18
REARBEEEEHMSER CEHE
E - BT RBBARITE  REATIE
RE - fERAZITRERBRER - WKk
BLEAE BT ERIRAREE 2 R R o BR
EXFiiErTReELBNZFERER
FIER ARSI REBEEERFW
NREB TR E M ] e &8 2ok
HErBMEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. R—EBE QT 2 EH

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THIT

Share of net assets PMEEEFE 33,653 32,546
Goodwill EES 38,681 41,399
72,334 73,945

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

R-ZZFB—XRFE+=-A=+—8" BE&2Q
AlZFBEWT

Percentage of
interest held Principal activities and
by the Group place of operation
AEEFE FEER
EmEolt REXEHD

Country of Particulars of

Name incorporation paid-up capital
=t AR S B R BERAFE
Xinhua (Daging) PRC RMB85,714,286

Merchandise Exchange & AR#& 85,714,286 7T

Company Limited?*

(“XHME”)
HE(KE)BmX S

BRAR([#FEM))

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of securities
brokerage and financial services, asset management services,
proprietary trading and trading business. XHME is engaged in
the operation of an electronic merchandise exchange platform
for commodity goods trading, which provides trading, clearing
financing and logistics services to suppliers and purchasers on the
electronic trading platform. The investment in XHME represents
an opportunity with earning potentials from the electronic
merchandise exchange platform for commodity goods trading,
and it is in line with business strategy of the Group to diversify the
Group’s business portfolio and broaden the income base. XHME
is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not
available.

B NFER

25.0*  Operation of an electronic
merchandise exchange
platform for commodity
goods trading in the PRC

RABEKERRENES
ZEFEmRXSTE

AEEFERFREESLEC RSB
BANBEEEERY BZBEERESE
X MBMRRERmENESZE
FEmXZ¥E  REFEZFFEaREMH
EEMEREHRR S BERENRYR
BR#S - METBEAT 2 E FRIEEmEY)
BOZETEmMR S FaERBEERAT
2B ARNEAKEARARERK
e RIEBRNBARIRZ RIGRE o ¥
FIRFEEMRRIER - WEMSHRE

BREZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18. R—EBE QT 2= (2)
The following tables illustrate the financial information of XHME TRIRESREHEAMEIERRE W E
extracted from its management accounts and adjusted to reflect AERAREL AR RRAEBELY
adjustments made by the Group when applying the equity AR TS ER
method:
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-A1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Current assets MENEE 53,024 30,609
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 105,210 106,719
Current liabilities MENEE (23,451) (7,016)
Non-current liabilities IERBEaE (41) =
Net assets BEFE 134,742 130,312
Revenue Wz 82,515 594
Expenses 53 (70,215) (57,204)
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations REFHEEE B2
and total comprehensive income md (B1E) ke mikasasa 12,300 (56,610)
No dividend was received from XHME during the years ended 31 HE_ZT—REFEKZT—AF+H
December 2016 and 2015. =+ —BIEFE - SIEKEGETE A ER
fRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18.

Reconciliation of the above financial information of XHME to
the carrying amount recognised in the consolidated financial

R—EBERT 2B (E)

IR AT S B AR S M ISR T
SR PR (B

statements:
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FET
Net assets of XHME R BEFE 134,742 130,312
Percentage of interests held by the Group* ANEE AR A DL 25.0% 25.0%
Group’s share of net assets in XHME AREED L EMEEFE 33,653 32,546

W not audited by BDO Limited

* rounded to the nearest tenth of one percent

In December 2016, the board of directors of XHME had met and
resolved to restructure its business lines for local compliance
purpose which involved suspension of a material line of business.
In view of this, the directors of the Company had performed an
impairment assessment of the Group’s interest in XHME based
on a valuation with the assistance of an independent valuer. The
valuation of the Group’s interest in associate is determined based
on an underlying projection of cash flows provided by XHME.
Based on the impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of
the Group’s interests in XHME is estimated to be higher than the
carrying amount and no impairment is considered necessary as at
31 December 2016.

B NFER

" AEERIEERSTMEBMAER
NREZ
* WEEREOBILLZ TN Z—

RZZ—RF+ZA - FREAMEEEE
MEeRLHERETEHEA(ER IR
EEIZXBEE)UNAEHBRE -
BER  ARAREFCERBIBIULA
D BTV S E S AR E R A
ZEmETTRENE - YAKRBNE S
NEERNGESERFEAEREESR
B2 HBERAETE - RIBZBEE
RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H " &R
SERFTREAzERZATRESESR
fREME - MEBAELRIE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS . PTEEmTIA
2016 2015
—REF —T—1F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Early redemption option embedded BRERESFANEZ
in SYHL Bonds (note 27) 12 il fE B =242 (M1eE 27) - 3,667
Profit guarantees (note 27) s FIRTE (3E27) - _
- 3,667
Less: non-current portion B FERNEREL - (3,667)
Current portion BNERER 7> - _
20. OTHER ASSETS 20. HttEE
2016 2015
AL —T-A1F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong BEBPREZEEBRA
Securities Company Limited (‘HKSCC”) ([BFEE]) ZEH)\;\.EFH 50 50
Cash contribution to the Guarantee REBEERBES ZHSMHK
Fund of HKSCC 50 50
Deposit with HKFE Clearing REBHEEEER AR ZZS
Corporation Limited 1,500 1,500
Deposits with the Stock Exchange R AT 2 1= ®
- Compensation Fund -HEES 50 50
_ Fidelity Fund ~HRES 50 50
— Stamp duty - ETERR 30 30
1,730 1,730
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. EFREMEBYIRRUARBNRK
PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2016 2015
— R —ZT—ARF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B AR 26,244 286,592
Other receivables and prepayments H A R BR R R TR 3R IE 5,726 4,638
31,970 291,230
Other receivables of the Group are neither past due nor impaired. RNE B E A U AR SR IT S m HA SR -
The analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B R 2 DT -
2016 2015
—NE —E—ARF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FH&T
Arising from the business of dealing REBHFEBEEK
in securities
- HKSCC - BREE - 31,041
— Cash clients -BHexEP - 1,361
— Margin clients -fFREP 1,635 2,704
Arising from asset management services 2R 8 & E & IR 17,944 26,974
Arising from financial advisory and REMIEEAR
consultancy services AR AR 7S 165 488
Arising from proprietary trading PEIE = 662 —
Arising from underwriting and R B 7 & Bl & AR
placing services 5,838 -
Arising from trading business KEEHER - 224,024
26,244 286,592
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. ESREMEWERARURFESR

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two business days after the
respective trade dates. The amounts due from cash and margin
clients are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement
date and bear interest at Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus a
spread of 3% to 8% (2015: 3% to 8%) per annum.

The Group does not provide any credit term to clients for its
financial advisory and consultancy services as well as asset
management services. Settlement of amounts arising from
underwriting and placing services is in accordance with the terms
set out in the respective agreements, usually within one year
after the service obligation has been fulfilled. Amount arising from
proprietary trading represents deposits placed with a securities
broker which is repayable on demand. The general credit periods
granted to customers of trading business were 365 days.

The amounts due from margin clients are neither past due nor
impaired except for an amount of HK$703,000 which were past
due for 181 — 365 days on 31 December 2015 following a trading
suspension of the pledged securities. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was necessary
due to their track record with the Group and the balances were fully
recoverable. The ageing analysis of trade receivables in respect of
other balances, based on due date, is as follows:

5 ()

KREEBEHFBEEEB EDREESEE
HATRERXZAMKMESRA - &
WH e MAFREPHIRANEE AL
WMEREE - WIBTHERFENEM
EEJEESE(ZZT—AHF : 3ERSE)
ArE °

7 5% 98 3 45 1 L B 55 o ) B ] AR A5 A
NREEEERBEFPRHETMAEEN -
K B AGH M BB RIS 2 RIR TR IB & 15
RATEZIRRER - —RBEKRBE
FE—FRN - REBLEEZFHRER
BRBEFRL TR ARERERE -
RYZEFEHEHREPZ—REEHR
365 H °

BR703,000/8 T2 R BN —_ T —H4F
+TZA=+—HERERZBLFEEL
X 5BEM181E3658 45N - BKFTRE
FREBEHEDHSRE  REATL
5 AREASERRILE  EBE
REESZELRERE  FELE®RER
Ul o BEMERIEL 2 B S EKEE
FERE DT (EREIHAR) AT -

2016 2015

—EB-REF —ZT—hF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FH&T AT

Not yet past due iH) AR 8 HA - 224,024
0 - 30 days 0ZE30H 10,862 36,496
31 - 60 days 31%E60H 1,936 2,843
61 - 90 days 61290 H 1,985 2,961
91 - 180 days 91E180H 5,698 9,173
181 - 365 days 1812365 H 3,146 8,391
Over 365 days HhiE 365 H 982 -
24,609 283,888

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. EFREMERERARURTENLR

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The amounts due from margin clients that are neither past due
nor impaired at the reporting date of HK$1,635,000 (2015:
HK$2,001,000) are secured by pledged marketable securities
with fair value of HK$11,387,000 (2015: HK$17,177,000). The fair
value of pledged marketable securities of each individual margin
client is higher than the corresponding outstanding balance. The
Group is permitted to sell or re-pledge these collaterals if that
client defaults in payments.

The amount arising from trading business represented bills
receivables held by and factored to the banks with recourse for
cash proceeds. These bills receivables were neither past due
nor impaired at the reporting date. In the event of default by the
debtors, the Group was obliged to pay the banks the amount
in default. As the Group retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownerships of these receivables, the Group recognised
the whole carrying amounts of the receivables and the cash
received on transfer as collateralised borrowings (note 26) until the
receivables were collected or the Group settled any losses suffered
by the banks. At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of these
receivables and the associated borrowings were HK$224,024,000
and HK$222,314,000, respectively. The difference between the
carrying amount of receivables and the associated borrowings was
HK$1,710,000. The directors of the Company considered that the
fair value of these receivables and the associated borrowings were
not materially differing from their carrying amount.

The amounts due from HKSCC, cash clients, brokers and clients
for its asset management as well as financial advisory and
consultancy services has not been provided for impairment loss
as there has not been a significant change in their credit quality.

B NFER

5 (&)

RS B EART R & HA 7n KRB < FE IR
R EF X IE1,635000%8 (==
— A % : 2,001,000 7T ) T3 A A F
B8 &£11,387,0008 ;L( =& — 7 F :
17,177,000 0) 2 BB HEEHE
iR SRAAFEREFZEEAEE
BERNTFEAHRNIBE 2 REBEH -
AEBEETCZEFAHERZEBR
T - HESBEERZEERR -

REBHFEBFIREBRRTHALR
BrREER WEREMEHIELER
1 o ZERWEIBEN RS B HBL KR8 2
IMARE ° HEFAZRL - AEEZER
RITZTBANIE - BRASERBE
ABLZERBERCERE AR KL
Bk - BAN SR B A WER R 2 2 5RERE
BERRAR - WiGEERNER IR
RAEIFEE (MiE26) - EEWEER
IR AEBEMRITES 2 EMEBX
RlE-RZZE—RAF+_A=+—8 "
ZERBEFREBEE ZREES A
/224,024,000 7T & 222,314,000 %
7T o FEWARFEEAEEE EREECH 2
EZRA1,710,0008 7L c A RAFEER
R ZERRERREEEE 2 ATE
BERmMEZEATEZEADH -

HREEERUEEANES) W EE
BB IR AR B R MR s RS e W &
BREE REEP  KREREPZFEA
W ARFHERERRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

ES

—TAF+ASt+—HILEE

22. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

22, HIEEERERE

2016 2015

—B-RF —T—hfF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FH&T AT

Listed equity securities TR AEE 135,110 17,173

Unlisted investments funds (note) FELEMREES (FIE) 97,047 167,131

232,157 184,304

Note: PiteE

Pursuant to the subscription agreements, the Group’s interests in the BERERE  AEBER LR EES 2

above investment funds are in the form of redeemable shares, which are
puttable at the holder’s option and entitle the Group to a proportionate
stake in the respective funds’ net assets. These investment funds are
managed by the respective investment managers who are empowered to
manage their daily operations and apply various investment strategies to
accomplish their respective investment objectives.

The Group served as an investment manager for certain of these
investment funds and generated management fee income (note 6) from
managing assets on behalf of investors but is terminable by independent
board of directors without a cause. The Group therefore does not
consolidate the above investment funds in which it holds an interest.
During the year, the above investment funds which the Group served
as investment manager were terminated. The Group did not act as
investment manager of the above investment funds at 31 December
2016.

At 31 December 2015, total net asset value of the investment funds which
the Group was the investment manager amounted to HK$308,063,000.
The Group’s maximum exposure to loss from its interests in these
investment funds at 31 December 2015 was limited to the carrying
amount of HK$88,342,000 included above. Change in fair value of these
investment funds was included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in “Changes in fair value of financial
instruments classified as held for trading” within “Other gains and losses”
(note 7).

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

mAREERNER  ATRGEAEER
B BARSERARRLIINBRESZEE
HE - REREESHARERETIERR
FEERRAZERERBAERERAZ
BRERBZIREREER -

AEERETREREES ZREKRE
RRREEEREEMELE @%WAWT
i6) - BRI B E RSN AR R H
ZERT TR - Bt AEEAEGE
FAE#ED FARERSEAARK - R
ERBAEEETIRESENREESEE
BiE-R-ZF—XRF+-A=+—8" $%
EABELC DR ERSHIRE LR

R-ZE—RF+-_A=1+—8 "&EEE
TRECEBE 7 RERESZEETFHEHBEAR
308,063,000/ L AEEBR =T —HF
+ZA=+—H EHRBEERZFTERE
EevREBZZERBRN EXHHEREE
88,342,000 B L AR - ZFREHE S Z AT
BEEHT AR B kEMEEmkas [E
i REE] 2 [DEAREEEC &/T
B AVEZEE (T -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

23.

24,

TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF
CLIENTS

From the Group’s ordinary business of dealing in securities, it
receives and holds money deposited by clients in the course
of conducting its regulated activities. These clients’ monies are
maintained in one or more segregated bank accounts and earn
interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates of
0.001% (2015: 0.001%) per annum. The Group has recognised
the corresponding trade payables to respective clients.

23.

RERFFEHFR ZERRITARR

RRBEEEFSHZAEREBRT  ~A5HE
EAREXRE ST MBUNLFEE T
Ao ZERPRIEFT N —Ek % @8
SMIRITIRP - WIRRBRERRITERE
F=0.001E(=ZZF—HF :0001EF)
STEEZEANERIRFE - AEE D
REMNTEEP ZHEEB SRR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. e RREERER
2016 2015
—~E —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT THIT
Demand deposits and cash on hand EHFEREFERE S 126,461 60,536
Demand deposits earn interest at floating rates based on daily T RIEBREERRITERNEGTE

bank deposit rates. The prevailing market interest rates for
demand deposits in Hong Kong and in the PRC are 0.001% (2015:
0.001%) per annum and 0.350%% (2015: 0.350%) per annum,
respectively.

Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is RMB of
HK$14,111,000 (2015: HK$9,687,000). RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement
and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ZE-RFER

BZBF R EREAIE - BEERFBEZE
HFER 2RI S ERED R A0.001
E(=—Z—H% :0.001E) X%0.350F
(ZZ—HF :0.350%) °

FALAKSERSERRESZRBEZS
% A14111,0008 T(Z T — R &
9,687,000 L) AR - ARKEEB
T BB cEE - BEFBEAM
SNE B IBARGIA R AEIE - E0ERFEE
BHRTE  AEBEATERERENS
INEEBZRITBARBEBAEME
agg o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. EZ R HMENERERURESTE

A
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Trade payables arising from the business REBEHEBEEK 2
of dealing in securities B HREMNERR
- HKSCC - BBEE 34,356 -
— Cash clients -ReER 302,031 52,446
— Margin clients -HFREP 672 12,358
337,059 64,804
Payable of net assets attributable to REREES A ERRG
other holders of redeemable shares ZEHAMRE ARGEEFE
of a consolidated investment fund Z FERTFIE - 14,811
Third party interests in collective REEIRETEIZ
investment schemes E=FtEn 60,044 -
Other payables and accruals HE SRR R ETER 22,446 37,415
419,549 117,030
The normal settlement terms of trade payables arising from the REBLFEBXEGCEFENERZ—
business of dealing in securities are two business days after the BREEHAZERZIABRIMESZE
respective trade dates. The amounts payable to cash and margin H- BRREEFREFZFIBARE
clients are repayable on demand. No ageing analysis in respect KEBE EERA EREBULF
of trade payables is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, N REDT T EHREIINARE - I
the ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the ERTRE S EMNRRZRRINT

business nature.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

26. BORROWINGS 26. f8&
2016 2015
—RE —E—hE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Collateralised borrowings KREE - 222,314
Loans from a shareholder RE—BREZER 15,387 =
Others Eib 11,040 =
26,427 222,314

Collateralised borrowings represented the amount of financing
obtained from factoring the Group’s bills receivables (note 21)
which were non-interest bearing and repayable within one year.
Weighted average effective interest rate of these borrowings was
4.4% per annum.

Loans from a shareholder are unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5%
per annum and are repayable within one year. The lender has the
right to request early repayment of the outstanding balance with
written notice of 7 business days. Borrowings from others are
unsecured, interest bearing at the rate quoted by a bank in the
PRC and are repayable within one year.

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

B
KRR EERERA
HAR - RPE—RRITARMNEET S

T&Tﬁ{ﬁﬁi‘éﬁiﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁIZE‘E\H&%‘%%

SzmEFRA(MFE21) » STEER

/AE’\ FAHEE -

/,\EA EVWE}&

27. TEKRES

A EEE 2 T
BERFNERA.4% °

KA —BRR2ERAEER  REFH
K35%:TE - RER—FAEE - §T7
I tEBEHEEANN AR
EER o HALERSE

2016 2015
—E-RE —hEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FHET

Liability component BEHD
SYFS Bonds SYFS &% 41,695 35,249
SYHL Bonds BRI &S 124,107 113,213
165,802 148,462
Less: non-current portion B © FERNEAZE > - (148,462)
Current portion BIERER 5> 165,802 =
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 27. AR ES (©&)

134

SYFS BONDS

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by SYFS
with WisePublic Holdings Limited, Mr. Li Gang and two other
entities (collectively referred to as the “Subscribers”) on 9 April
2014, SYFS issued zero coupon convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$16,000,000, HK$9,000,000, HK$10,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 (“SYFS Bonds”) to respective Subscribers on 16
June 2014. The SYFS Bonds entitled the holders to convert them
into ordinary shares of SYFS (the “SYFS Conversion Shares”) at
a conversion price of HK$10,000 with certain profit conditions
of SYFS and its subsidiaries (“SYFS Group”) as set out in the
Company’s circular dated 16 May 2014. Any unconverted SYFS
Bonds shall be redeemed by SYFS at 100% of its face value within
30 business days from the third anniversary day.

The shareholders of WisePublic Holdings Limited, Ms. Zhang
Xiaomei, Mr. Wang Shengkun and Mr. Chen Bai Cao, are also
management of the SYFS Group. Two of the Subscribers,
WisePublic Holdings Limited (the “First Guarantor”) and Mr. Li
Gang (the “Second Guarantor”), provide profit guarantee to SYFS
Group on their audited consolidated profit after taxation as stated
in the subscription agreement, and details below:

Relevant Periods

EE

SYFS &%

BIESYFS B8 RIER AR A A - ZFMI
EERSIMEEB(GBIREAD
R-Z—MNEFNANBFTLZRER
& SYFSRZZE—WEANA+/NHMA
& R A {72 % A 16,000,000 %5
Jt * 9,000,000/7T + 10,000,000 %
7T % 10,000,000 7t 2 T B A B IR &
% ([SYFSfE % |) - SYFSE 4 I 7 &
BAEFR - 72 k% {E 10,000
JC A #2 B SYFS I i A% ([SYFS# A% A%
M) WHEETHBSYFS REKWE
AAI([SYFS&E ) 2 mfz gt (FR
ARARRZE—NFERA+BTRIE
ML) o I RERIRZ SYFSEH KA
SYFSHE=ZAF HE30EE ¥ HRiZ
HMEE 2 100% EE o

BREBRAR AR Z KRR KRG L
E B A RIRIAR A E TR RSYFS&E
BzEEAR - HAMERBANE
REBRERAB(TE—REA]D) EF
MIsead ([ —REA D)) G020 thh = P
B MSYFSEERHBEBARRERLE
ZEEEEN 28 NRE - BEHBE
B

Profit Guarantee

mAREE

For financial year 2014

—E-NFHMBFR

For two financial years 2014 and 2015
—E-NEN_TE-AFERETBREE

For three financial years 2014, 2015 and 2016
ZENF - ZE-RFRZTE-RE=EMREE

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Not less than zero

Not less than HK$20 million
12 20,000,000 77T
Not less than HK$50 million
550,000,000 7 7T
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 27. AR ES (&)

SYFS BONDS (Continued)

In any Relevant Periods, the First Guarantor undertakes and
agrees to compensate the shortfall with the Profit Guarantee by
transferring any unconverted SYFS Bonds or SYFS Conversion
Shares held by it to SYFS at a consideration of HK$1. The SYFS
Bonds transferred could be repurchased by the First Guarantor
at HK$1 within six months from the date of such transfer if the
shortfall is made good by the subsequent audited consolidated
profit after taxation of SYFS Group. The Second Guarantor
agrees to compensate the remaining shortfall by way of similar
compensation method with the First Guarantor, if the First
Guarantor fails to fully compensate the shortfall. In the situation
of the actual profit exceeds the amount of Profit Guarantee,
management of SYFS will have the right to pay any excess profits
as bonus to employees and/or dividend to shareholders of SYFS.
At 31 December 2016, Profit Guarantee is not recognised in the
financial statements as the actual profit per management accounts
exceeds the amount of Profit Guarantee. At 31 December 2015,
Profit Guarantee was not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as the directors of the Company were of the opinion
that the effect was insignificant to the Group.

Based on the terms of the subscription agreement, the SYFS
Bonds contain two components, (i) the liability and (i) the equity
conversion components. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, none
of the SYFS Bonds has been converted into ordinary shares of
SYFS. The movements of the components of SYFS Bonds during
the year are set out below:

B NFER

SYFS &% (#&)
RAEMAEBHE £ —REAERBL
R EASYFSEEEMFAMARLIRY
SYFS&# sk SYFSH AR AR 1D + KB A1
BT WHESFRESEITEE -
WAL —REBEANUSYFSEEE
B2 BBBEEZEE R ME - F—
REATROSLEZE 2 BEFTSEAA
A THEEEEESYFSES -
“RFBARBESE —RBEARETEE
ETRBEZBERT  LE—REALLU
ZHERE  HETTEIAE - NE
B am A s FIRESEE - AISYFSE
2 8 A R R TR & #80% FI /E B SYFS
BB ZTEA - &5 [ASYFS AR B Ik
fER - R E—RNFE+_A=1+—H
AR S ERRE BERAFNBLEFIRE
&8 BUBFREL AR IERESP
BR -R_TE—RAF+=-A=+—8"
W ER A BB RERERRFRE - R
HARARREZRAYHAEB 2 HET
j(o

BIERERZZIGER  SYFSES B
MED - ((BERHERLBEED - B
—E-AERZE-AFTZA=t—
B WMESYFSESFHW LI A SYFS E R
B o FEASYFSESFMEMR D 2 EEhE
PR
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 27. AR ES (©&)

136

SYFS BONDS (Continued) SYFS &% (&)
Equity
Liability conversion
component component Total
=) ERLBRED st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2015 R-s—-H&—A—H 29,813 17,792 47,605
Effective interest recognised EERER R E 5,436 = 5,436
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z—EF
1 January 2016 +ZA=t+—HK
—ZE—Xxf—H—H 35,249 17,792 53,041
Effective interest recognised EERER R E 6,446 - 6,446
At 31 December 2016 R-B—XRE
+=A=+—H 41,695 17,792 59,487
SYHL BONDS BRERES

Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into by the Company
on 5 November 2014 and 19 December 2014, the Company
issued convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$135,000,000 (“SYHL Bonds”) on 19 November 2014 and 30
December 2014. The SYHL Bonds entitled the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.35 per share of the Company at any time before the third
anniversary date of the initial issue dates (“SYHL Bonds Maturity
Date”). The SYHL Bonds bear interests at 8% per annum except
that during the second and third anniversary period, no interest
shall be accrued to the holders when the average closing price in
respect of the Company'’s share for the last 30 consecutive trading
days (“Current Market Price”) before the second anniversary of the
initial issue dates (“Second Interest Payment Date”) and the SYHL
Bonds Maturity Date exceed HK$0.50 and HK$0.55 per share of
the Company, respectively.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 27. AR ES (&)

SYHL BONDS (Continued)

If the Current Market Price on the Second Interest Payment
Date exceed HK$0.50 per share of the Company, the Company
shall have the right to early redeem the SYHL Bonds (in part or
in whole), at the aggregate amount of the outstanding principal
and interest not later than 3 business days after the Second
Interest Payment Date. Unless previously redeemed, converted
or cancelled, the Company will redeem each SYHL Bonds on the

BRRERES (&)

HRE —ENE R 2 ERmERBER
AR 0.50/8 T - BIARG A H#E
RE_ENBRBRRNERIEEXBR
REERE XA E 2 BRI E DR
ZRIES (BB EE) - BRIFERCE
B HBRGEH - AR RHRERIER
EFFHARERHREERSRER
FEETAE (20A) B & B IRIEE S

SYHL Bonds Maturity Date at 100% of the outstanding principal
amount, together with accrued interest, if any.

RIERE R R BRERES D
R={EEH : ()BE - (i) PTEI A K
BERBRIED R_T—ARFER-FT
—HEFE+-A=1+—8  BERRER
BEEREEBAARRT LB - FRARR
EREFEK DD 2 EBEST

Based on the terms of the subscription agreements, the SYHL
Bonds are bifurcated into three components, (i) the liability, (i)
the derivative and (iii) the equity conversion components. At 31
December 2016 and 2015, none of the SYHL Bonds has been
converted into ordinary shares of the Company. The movements of
the components of SYHL Bonds during the year are set out below:

Equity
Liability = Derivative conversion
component component component Total
fTETR Emiig
&E&EH B B et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE  TER TET TER
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
At 1 January 2015 R-—E-H&E—H—H 104,087 (1,481) 34,408 137,014
Changes in fair value RNHEEE) = (2,186) = (2,186)
Effective interest recognised ERRER = 19,926 - - 19,926
Interest paid ERFIE (10,800) - - (10,800)
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZE—5F
1 January 2016 +=ZA=+—-8kK
—E-XxE-A—H 113,213 (3,667) 34,408 143,954
Changes in fair value NHEEE) - 3,667 - 3,667
Effective interest recognised ERRER = 21,694 - - 21,694
Interest paid EAFLE (10,800) - - (10,800)
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB—XRF
+=A=+-H 124,107 - 34,408 158,515
—E-REER BREZERERAT 137
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

138

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEIEFIIE

(A) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS RECOGNISED A CERZELZHEEE
Excess of
depreciation over
tax depreciation
allowances
WEBEHBE
TERE
HK$’000
F&T

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 R=-Z—HF—HF—H -
and 1 January 2016 —E-RF+=-A=+—H

E=Z=E—XRF—H—H -
Credited to profit or loss (note 11) s AEZE (HEE11) 144
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRE+=-HA=+—H 144

(B) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED (B) FRERZELZEHEEE

The Group had estimated tax losses of HK$102,165,000
(2015: HK$82,559,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses of HK$91,499,000 (2015:
HK$73,770,000) were related to certain subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong and could be carried forward
indefinitely under the current tax legislation. In addition,
certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC had tax losses
of HK$10,666,000 (2015: HK$8,789,000) which were
subject to expiry period of five years from the year in
which the tax loss arose. No deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams against which these
unused tax losses could be utilised.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

rEBEBEBMBABHIEBEESE
102,165,000 70 ( = & — R F -
82,559,000 7T ) + LA 45 85 B2 K
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91,499,000 ;L( Z T — A F -
73,770,000 7T ) Ty B E TR EH
a2 B ATAR - BRIRER
IRRTS GBI EIR BRAEEE o LoD + &
FRABRLEENHBRRHEAT
TEE53810,666,000/8 T(—E—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BRZA
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each Nominal value
SREE0.05% T
ZEREAE HE
HK$’000
FHT
Authorised: JEE
At 1 January 2015, R-B-H5-F—-H"
31 December 2015, —E-RF¥+=ZA=+-H"
1 January 2016 and —E-"¥E-A—-HkK
31 December 2016 “E-XE+ZH=1+—H 8,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZETRHE -
At 1 January 2015 R=-B-FHF—HF—H 3,471,762,556 173,588
Issue of shares upon exercise TR R AR RS B TR D
of share options 14,800,000 740
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZE-"%+=-A=+-—H
1 January 2016 R=%— "KEF—FJ —f 3,486,562,556 174,328
Issue of shares upon exercise RITRERERZ1TRN
of share options 56,000,000 2,800
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+=ZA=1+—H 3,542,562,556 177,128

PIEC BTN EMB T EZ A R FHE
B RERERREZ

All issued shares rank pari passu in all respects including all rights
as to dividends, voting and return of capital. - BIEBBAR
FRBHER o

ZE-RFER BREZERARAT 139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(@)

Pursuant to the general meeting held on 24 September
2004, a share option scheme (“2004 Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company. The purpose of the 2004 Scheme
provides incentives or rewards to the eligible participants
(including but not limited to employees, directors, suppliers
and customers of the Group) (“Qualified Persons”) for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Pursuant to this 10-year term 2004 Scheme, the Company
can grant share options to the Qualified Persons for a
consideration of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the
Qualified Persons. The total number of the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
to each Qualified Person (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares then in issue. Pursuant
to a resolution passed on the annual general meeting of the
Company, dated 24 April 2014, the Company can grant
161,201,291 share options to the Qualified Persons. At 31
December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options has been granted and remained outstanding under
the 2004 Scheme was 53,200,000 (2015: 113,200,000),
representing 1.5% (2015: 3.2%) of the Company’s shares in
issue at that date.

The exercise price in relation to each share option pursuant
to the 2004 Scheme shall be not less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the share option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (i) the
nominal value of a share of the Company. There shall be no
minimum holding period for the vesting or exercise of the
share options under the 2004 Scheme but the share options
are exercisable within the option period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

30. BREBIIR

(@)

BIER—_ZZNF LA -—+HASE
TZRERE  ARRIBHEHN—E
BERTE ([T FETE)) -
“ETNFEHEIEEMASERRHE
H(BEETRAAEEZES -
BT HEREER) ([6EKA
+ DRSO R - OB E %
REFESAAEEELZERIKR S
KLAEBBUEENBEESRE
B WHREBHAEBEEEEZIAN
B o

BEL+F2 — ST OFTE
ARARAAEEBERALTRLER
> MAEBRATEREBENHRE
BRESL1.00BTZRE - &
ZBEEALTREM 128 A HIRE
NRETTEER 2 EBRE(BRREET
i Bt R ARITEZ ERE)
TEBETT M AS BT 2 B ID B BK -
TEBAEREEITRH 1% °
BERAAFRRBFAS LiBB
BfA-Z—WEMA_—+MmA
ZRFR ARFAIRAEERA
TR H 161,201,291 (D EEAS#E - A
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BTN FEEERLEN
RITEZBREFTS R 2BRHE
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113,200,000 % ) * fh A& A B 1A 7%
HEETRNPZ15%(—E—H
£ :3.2%) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

30.

=

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 30. R (#2)

(@ Movements in share options to subscribe for ordinary shares @ FRREBE-ZSZMOFFEITRBEAR
in the Company under the 2004 Scheme during the year and NaEE R AR 2 B R H N
their weighted average exercise price are as follows: RETFHITEERT -

Number of Weighted average
share options exercise price
BREYE IFEFIFITHEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XE —T-hHE ZB-XE =—T-—IfF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
. ____________________________________________|
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BXTE 113,200,000 | 150,000,000 0.212 0.220
Exercised B (56,000,000) | (14,800,000) 0.183 0.199
Forfeited BRI (4,000,000) | (22,000,000) 0.183 0.277
Outstanding at 31 December M+ =A=1T—HX{I{# | 53,200,000 | 113,200,000 0.246 0.212
Exercisable at 31 December A+ -A=+—HaF17{#| 53,200,000 | 113,200,000 0.246 0.212
Notes: Bi&E -
()  The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares () EBEBEREETEEANAQT
immediately before the dates on which the share options A 7 2 hn#ge 5 & 0.235
were exercised is HK$0.235 (2015: HK$0.349). BIL(ZE—REF : 0.349%7T) °
—REEH BRRERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)  The exercise prices and expiry dates of share options under
the 2004 Scheme outstanding at the reporting date are as

30. BRI (&)
@ (&)
M : (48)

(i) IS BEEARITE
FEEET2ERIEZITEER

— ==

— ==

follows: fEw B AR
Expiry dates Number of share options Exercise price
& B 8 BRERE TEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HFE ZB-RE ~—T—FHF
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
24/07/2016 ZE—RNFtAZ+MHE - | 60,000,000 0.183 0.183
20/06/2017 —E—tFA=TH 52,000,000 | 52,000,000 0.245 0.245
25/08/2021 —E-—FN\A=Z+HH 1,200,000 1,200,000 0.280 0.280
53,200,000 | 113,200,000

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share
options outstanding at 31 December 2016 is 0.6 year (2015:
1.0 year).

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—A"E+-A=1+—BLEE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 15 October
2014, a new share option scheme (“2014 Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company in place
of the 2004 Scheme. The share options granted for the
2004 Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2004 Scheme.

The 2014 Scheme is also valid and effective for 10 years,
after which no further share options may be issued under the
2014 Scheme but any share options granted thereto shall
remain exercisable in accordance with the 2014 Scheme.
The purpose of the 2014 Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant share options to the Qualified Persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which can be granted
under the 2014 Scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. Pursuant
to a resolution passed on the annual general meeting of
the Company, dated 15 October 2014, the Company can
grant 161,201,291 share options to the Qualified Persons,
until the next time of refreshment. The maximum number of
shares which can be granted under the 2004 Scheme and
the 2014 Scheme may not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares issuable under the 2004 Scheme
and the 2014 Scheme to each Qualified Persons within
any 12-month’s period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval.

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to prior shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

B NFER

30. BRBIIR#E)

(b)

RER TN+ A+RASET
ZBRFFRIRE - AATRREH
IR B ([ =T —mF
AR D UK - T EEE - 5t
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—ETMEFEIDBER LA F1T
f&£ o
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ERtZ SRR B -
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HERZTMSBBAARTREE
TBRAZ10% ° IRIERAQE K
FEFAE FRBAPA-T
F+ATHAZRZER - ANARA
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The exercise price in relation to each share option pursuant
to the 2014 Scheme shall be not less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the share option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company. There shall be no
minimum holding period for the vesting or exercise of the
share options under the 2014 Scheme but the share options
are exercisable within the option period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company.

No share options have been granted under the 2014
Scheme since its adoption.

On 19 June 2014, the Company and Rotaland Limited
(the “Consultant”) entered into a consultancy agreement
(the “Consultancy Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Company engaged the Consultant to provide marketing
and introduction services advice and guidance to support
the Group’s business expansion and development (the
“Consultancy Services”) for a fixed term of three years.

As consideration for the Consultancy Services, the Company
has, upon the signing of the Consultancy Agreement,
conditionally granted to the Consultant an option (the
“Option”), at a nominal consideration of HK$1.00, to
subscribe for 140,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each in
the share capital of the Company (“Option Shares”) at an
exercise price of HK$0.25 per Option Share.

The Option is exercisable for 3 years from the date of
Consultancy Agreement. Vesting of the Option is conditional
upon the achievement of certain performance target by
a subsidiary of the Company. None of the Option was
exercised since granted or exercisable at 31 December 2016
and 2015. The weighted average remaining contractual life
of Option outstanding at 31 December 2016 is 0.5 year
(2015: 1.5 years).

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

No equity-settled share-based payment expense was recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. No liabilities
were recognised as these were all equity-settled share-based
payment transactions.

30. R4

B2 22— RNFEN_Z—HFt+_-A
=+—RALLFE  WEBRRERBRAL
EROEFAY - ARZENFTHE AR
REERMDNRRS - WA EREREM
afE&E-

31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. WE—EWEQT
In order to focus on private equity and venture capital investment REINILERERBIEEREE - A
as well as conducting foreign investment activities and planning to RAREIMEEEB RETEIR KK ER
expand its business into Mainland China through Closer Economic EERKEBRRLY CEPA G HER
Partnership Arrangement in the future, the Group acquired the ERZPE AN  KAEEE WEPuu
entire equity interest in Puru Saxena Limited (“PSL”), which is Saxena Limited ([PSL]) 2 % &0 i% 7 4
a company licensed to carry on the business of advising on o ZARR—ERNEBEBMRBATE
securities and asset management in Hong Kong. The transaction ERLFBAREEERERN AR - A
was completed on 24 August 2016 at a cash consideration of AXSER_Z—XR"F/\AZTHEHARE
HK$7,485,000. B - HER(ER 7,485,000 8T °
Fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed LR S 2 Tl 2 AR EER
and the net cash outflow in respect of the above transaction are FrEBE 2 A FERRE R FREH
summarised below: g (L N
HK$’000
FAET
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired: FFWEZAIRBIEEFE 2 DA FE :
Other receivables H At fE YR FX 211
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREZEREE 439
Other payables H A FE(T AR (1695)
485
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEL 2 mE 7,000
Total consideration RE@EE 7,485
Net cash outflow: HemH s :
Cash consideration paid BEfReRE 7,485
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BEWER e KR ERIAER (439)
7,046
ZE—REEFR BRRERARAR 145
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

31.

32.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Fair value of the receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted
to HK$211,000 which represented the gross carrying amount
and none of them are not expected to be collected. Goodwill
of HK$7,000,000 recognised above primarily related to the key
personnel of PSL. Goodwill has been allocated to the asset
management segment and is not expected to be deductible for
tax purpose. Acquisition-related costs amounted to HK$583,000
and were not included as part of the consideration transferred and
have been recognised as an expense in the consolidated profit or
loss, as part of “Other expenses”.

Since the acquisition, PSL contributed insignificant amount to the
consolidated profit or loss. Had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2016, there is no significant impact to revenue and loss
for the year.

RESERVES

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company may be credited to a
contributed surplus account of the Company. Such contributed
surplus, may be distributed when the Company is able to settle its
liabilities when they fall due after such payment.

SHAREHOLDER’S CONTRIBUTION

Shareholder’s contribution represents the amount of borrowing
due by the Company which was waived by a former shareholder
during the year ended 30 April 2008.

CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Capital redemption reserve was arising from the repurchase and
cancelled of 47,720,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each during
the year ended 30 April 2001.

CONVERTIBLE BOND EQUITY RESERVE

Convertible bond equity reserve represents the equity component
of SYHL Bonds issued in 2014 which had not been converted into
ordinary shares of the Company.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

31.

32.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. f#iEE)

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RESERVE

Contingent consideration reserve represented the remaining
balance of the consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary
in 2014 that might be satisfied by way of allotment and issue of
556,585,714 shares of HK$0.05 each by the Company if the
profit target set out in the related acquisition agreement had
been fulfilled within one year after the completion. As the profit
target had not been fulfilled before the end of profit target period
in 2015, the contingent consideration reserve was transferred to
accumulated losses in that year.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

Share option reserve represents the portion of the grant date fair
value of the unexercised share options of the Company.

CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

Currency translation reserve represents all the foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
and goodwill through acquisition of foreign operations from their
functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency.

B NFER

AR E#E
FARAREBREEER - —LFURE—MH
B AR 2 RIERTE - MRS RZE
REREFIE B ZR TR & —FREK -
ARARAHERARZERETEREE
0.057 T 2 556,585,714 A% A% 17 37 1~ 3%
825 - AR T —HENE B Z
ERBIARGEEKRTBEEE - AR E
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

33. COMMITMENTS 33. AiE
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS REBNRE
At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments RekE BE - AEBIRBE T E
under non-cancellable operating leases, in respect of land and MAF Lt REFEAERRKERE
buildings, are payable as follows: RIBAFRAT -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 9,639 6,730
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF (BREEWME) 13,036 234
22,675 6,964
The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. AEERBCEMOHEEZEYH - A
The leases run for an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2015: 1 to 3 HEER A—ZE2=F(ZF—RF:
years). None of the leases include contingent rentals. —E=F) - @EBANREIAHEE -
OTHER COMMITMENTS H bR
At the reporting date, the total future minimum service fee RikE B NREBIRE A #EE RS
payments under non-cancellable service agreements are payable W EEE 2 KRR K(KIRTS & A BTN
as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-RF —=—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Within one year —FR 1,733 2,022
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EEFERF (BEEEMRT) - 1,733
1,733 8,75
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BE_Z—R"FT_A=t—HLFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

4. BEAIREREERRS %

BHENP 2ERER

BRZEVHREREMHFFRZRS R
RN NEBRFNEREE A T
ZEARRZUT ¢

2016 2015
—EB-AE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHT
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William R RRTA
— Commission and brokerage income -BHR G2 ME RELBWA
from securities dealing 5 13
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara ESR
— Commission and brokerage income - BER G2 ME LKA
from securities dealing - S
King Lion Group Limited (note) King Lion Group Limited (M%)
— Interest expense - FERX 472 —
Note: GEE

Interest expense of HK$472,000 (2015: Nil) payable to King Lion Group
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, was arising from the
loans advanced from this entity during the year of HK$20,000,000 (2015:
Nil) and HK$5,000,000 (2015: Nil) was repaid during the year.

Except as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the financial year.

KA A E E &R King Lion Group Limited A
FRBATZEF 20,000,000 (ZF—H
& #&) [ 5,000,000 (ZT—RF : &)
EEZENZER 2B 472,000 7T
(ZZ—hF : ®BERFAEE -

Br EXFTEBEEIN - RETEREEARIR
MBRFEAER BIEAXEEER
(RRBIREFR—FH)EM BARTE
ERETEERAEEEEEAER CH
X5 BHHKEBREL -

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL FTEEHE AS SN
2016 2015
—E-RE¥ —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Short-term employee benefits HEESRF 4,415 4,694
Post-employment benefits RIRER 215 215
4,630 4,909

B NFER
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HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

35. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

35. BERE T 2ERMEER BB

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities AEBERBEHHERCEREERS
as recognised at the reporting dates are categorised as follows: EREESFWOT ¢
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFAER eREE
profit or loss (classified as (DERBIEER)
held for trading)
— Held for trading investments -FHEEERBKRE 232,157 184,304
— Derivative financial instruments -TESHMT A - 3,667
232,157 187,971
Loans and receivables ER KRR
— Other assets -HEtEE 1,730 1,730
— Trade receivables - B SRR 26,244 286,592
— Other receivables — H bR W BR K 4,852 2,405
— Trust bank balances held on - REPHE 2 EHRITER
behalf of clients 301,145 51,381
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReKREZERIEH 126,461 60,536
460,432 402,644
692,589 590,615
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEBEN ARz SRAGE
- Trade and other payables and accruals - & 5 & H i FERBRFUA K
JEEtE A 419,549 117,030
- Borrowings - 58 26,427 222,314
— Convertible bonds - AR ES 165,802 148,462
611,778 487,806
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in note
35. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these risks to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

MARKET RISK
(A) CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, borrowings
and cash balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
RMB and US$.

To manage the currency risk, the Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances. The Group may also uses foreign
exchange forward contracts to minimise its currency risk
exposure, except for those transactions denominated in US$
which are, or are expected to be, entered into by operations
with a functional currency of HK$. No foreign exchange
forward contracts are entered for these transactions as
the Group considers the risk of changes in exchange rates
between HK$ and US$ to be insignificant.

ZE-RFER

36.

PR EREEBBERBER

AEBFESMTERBENIESS - %
LemI A AR REBRIEZSE

B RN T - EREEERE
RZER - MERE R & A S R EE
ETEHE ©

™SR R
(A) EEER

AEEEREERREZREE
ERBER - EERRSEH (A
RS IEREB T B AINE ’ETT
B)2EE -EXLRRIERR
ARBRZET -

AERERER  AEEEBRRE
ERIEREERE ASNE BT HE
Bﬁm%&\\[ BRERFEERT
E XK o RNEE TR EEAINE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. i EREEEERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued) miEER (&)

(A) CURRENCY RISK (Continued) (A) EBEHRERE(E)
The following table details the Group’s financial assets and TREFVAEERRERHEEE A
liabilities denominated in currencies, other than the functional AR BRI se E I LAINE EEETHE
currency of the entities to which they relate, at the end of the JEMBEERTRABE

reporting period:

Expressed in HK$

UBTE5
2016 2015
AL —T-hF
Us$ RMB Us$ RMB
E AR =TT ARHE
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
T Fr T T
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H fih fE UG BR3¢ 7,030 2,061 = 224,024
Trust bank balances held ~HKEXEF#HEZ
on behalf of clients ERERITAEER 827 - 20 -
Cash and cash equivalents & MIR&ZERIEE 12,226 768 1,000 3,599
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b BRI (5,142) (19) (20) =
Borrowings BE - - - (222,314)
Net exposure [R\ B F =R 14,941 2,810 1,000 5,309
The following table indicates the approximate change in TRINFAEEFAEE (KRG
the Group’s loss for the year (and accumulated losses) and B8 AR R A Emal o RE
other components of consolidated equity in response to REBBHIHOES  AEH
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates RiE B AE B EREAINER
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of @ o BUEME - AKEEY - Bx
reporting period. In this respect, the Group does not expect TCEETTEME - T A TTE R
any significant changes in US$/HK$ exchange rates as US$ TEREMERES) -

is pegged to HKS.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

M¥RREEEERBE#E)

MARKET RISK (Continued)
(A) CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss (and
accumulated losses) for the year. For an increase in loss (and

™% EkE ()
(A) E#mEE(E)

TREFBRTFAER (MR
BB - WERABR(RRAE

B)EM - ATRBUESRAR -

accumulated losses) for the year, the balances below would

be negative.
Increase in RMB Decrease in RMB
against HK$ by 2% against HK$ by 2%
AR¥RBTAE2% ARBRBTRE2%
Effect on Effect on
loss for Effect on loss for Effect on
the year and other the year and other
accumulated components accumulated components
losses of equity losses of equity
HERNBE Hignx HEREE Hign
REFER HitHs RISER Hit# 2
£2 A7 28 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET
2016 —E-RE 56 - (56) -
2015 —E—hF 106 - (106) -

The stated changes represent management’s assessment LiEHEERENREE MAF

of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

B NFER

JE & HAR L AR A 2 [E R 5 38 A
BB AT - BIRERR  SU
EAfETREKREEERRER - T3
BN EHREEE B 2 AR e
REFEANRL
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. i EREEEERBEK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

154

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to borrowings (note 26) and convertible bonds (note 27)
issued at fixed rates. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate financial assets
of amounts due from cash and margin clients (note 21) and
bank balances (notes 23 and 24).

To manage the interest rate risk, the Group may use interest
rate swaps to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and
floating rate exposure consistent with the Group’s policy. At
31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any
outstanding interest rate swaps.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates had increased by
2% (2015: 2%) while all other variables were held constant,
the loss for the year would decrease by approximately
HK$8,363,000 (2015: decrease in loss by approximately
HK$1,995,000) and there would be a corresponding change
in accumulated losses. If interest rates had decreased by
2% (2015: 2%) while all other variables were held constant,
the loss for the year would increase by approximately
HK$8,363,000 (2015: increase in loss by approximately
HK$1,981,000) and there would be a corresponding
change in accumulated losses. Other components of the
consolidated equity would remain unchanged.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

MARKET RISK (Continued) miEE K (&)
(B) INTEREST RATE RISK (B) FI=EE

AEBEHEEREEE (ME26) MR
[B 7 A R 21T 2 AT AR B 2 (Mt et
27) A A ENX@ER - K&
ErE A ARG RIFREP

A (FIFE21) AR RTT 48R (M
WBR24) 2 EEERMEBEEZRENM
MR o

REENERER - NEBAEHH
R HE R B E BEE AT A =X
RES  AFEREBBER - 1
:g—/\i)&_i@ £¢+_ﬂ
=1t—H  AEEYBEREARE
#) 2 MR 5 -

RZFE—R"FE+ZA=+—8"
EABEMESHIZITENBR
T WA EER2N(ZZE— 1
F:2%) AIFAEEETRELY
8,363,000 (=T —HF :
IR 491,995,000 7T ) © M &
FTE S IEEEE) - fEFTA
SEEFTENBERLT @ WHETK
2% (ZZ—FF : 2%) * QIFERE
B 518 K 498,363,000/ T( =&
— R : BT R 1,981,000
TT) - MBEEEHEEREZS - 47
BRERHME D ST TE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

(B)

(€

INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the analysis is prepared by assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities and investment funds
classified as held for trading investments (note 22). The
Group’s equity securities are listed on the Stock Exchange
and Shenzhen Stock Exchange while investment funds
invest primarily in companies listed in Hong Kong and
China Region. Decisions to buy and sell are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities and
investment funds as well as the liquidity needs.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the extent
that the Company’s own equity instruments underlie the fair
values of derivatives or other financial liabilities of the Group.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group is exposed to
this risk through the equity-linked interest payments attached
to the SYHL Bonds as disclosed in note 27 to these financial
statements.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)
(C) EQUITY PRICE RISK (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, if relevant equity prices had
increased by 10% (2015: 10%) while all other variables
were held constant, the loss for the year would decrease
by approximately HK$23,216,000 (2015: decrease in loss
by approximately HK$19,054,000) and there would be a
corresponding change in accumulated losses. If relevant
equity prices had decreased by 10% (2015: 10%) while all
other variables were held constant, the loss for the year
would increase by approximately HK$23,216,000 (2015:
increase in loss by approximately HK$19,436,000) and there
would be a corresponding change in accumulated losses.
Other components of the consolidated equity would remain
unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the changes in equity price had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and has been applied to those
instruments which expose the Group to equity price risk
at that date. In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk
as the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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36. EEREEBERBXK &)

miZEkE (&)
(C) BAERER(E)
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E—ﬂi 110%) - AIF R EE
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BIT) - mEAFTBIESEEEE) -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BiiREMREEEERBE &)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The management closely monitors
the subsequent settlement of the debts and does not grant long
credit period to new customers. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on trade
receivables is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The credit risk on other assets is limited because
the counterparties are regulated entities.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each counterparty rather than
the geographical area or industry and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual counterparties. At 31 December
2016, the Group had concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 51% of the balance was due from five largest
debtors (2015: 78% was due from a single debtor). Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to these
financial statements.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
for its non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The undiscounted cash
flows include both interest and principal payments:

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MERBEEEERBR &)

nREBEE®REE)
TRAVIFFITESRABBENMTESRE
B2 TAHNBIHIBER - ZRIBBAE
BRIz &FAHERAE
ZARFRBAZRERE - RMBRER
BEMNBRAREMK

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Less than 6 months 2to5
amount cash flow 6 months to 1 year years
BRRER
BEE HReR8E SRAER AEAE-F MERF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THER TR THET TR TR
. _________________________________________________________________|
At 31 December 2016 R-B—-RE
+ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables B AR EMEIRR
and accruals AR ER 419,549 419,549 419,549 - -
Borrowings e 26,427 26,507 26,507 - -
Convertible bonds ARRES 165,802 190,800 - 190,800 -
611,778 636,856 446,056 190,800 -
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—A1%F
+-A=1+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 R RR
and accruals MK REEtE R 117,030 117,030 117,030 = =
Borrowings E-1 222,314 224,024 224,024 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES 148,462 201,600 - 10,800 190,800
487,806 542,654 341,054 10,800 190,800
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 37. AFEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE BAVEFEZE/mITA

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments TRENAEERELAFEZRHER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated e MR RABRELER N ER
statement of financial position according to the fair value hierarchy. EZEMIA  ZERGEREZES
The hierarchy groups financial instruments into three levels based BMTAZAVEFEMFEAZEZGHA
on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the BEzHEEATEE eI A A=
fair value of these financial instruments. The fair value hierarchy o RNEEZERFESEMAT ¢

has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical F—H: AIBREEXBERNGRETNS
assets or liabilities; ZIRE (CREFAEE)

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level FE: BEESBEEEZ (AER) HE
1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either % (BMBIRITAE) ATEIR 2@ A
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from B F—EBEIHRERIN:
prices); and )54

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on F=H: EEXBRELIIFRFEAIHEET
observable market data (unobservable inputs). BEE 2B AB(TAERE

ANE)FE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+-_A=+—HIFE

37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 37. ATEFE#E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued) BRAFEFECEMIAE(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—% -t =R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
(note (a)) (note (b))
(FF3E(a)) (MI7E (b))
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB—REF
+=ZA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAER
through profit or loss ZEREE
— Listed equity securities - TR AR S 135,110 - - 135,110
— Unlisted investment funds -JEETIRERES - - 97,047 97,047
— Derivative component of - BRI E 5
SYHL Bonds ZOTETERD - - - -
135,110 - 97,047 232,157
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RHF
+=—RA=+—8H
Financial assets at fair value BAE ABR
through profit or loss L ERBE
— Listed equity securities - F TR AR 17,173 - — 17,173
— Unlisted investment funds -ELmIREES - - 167,131 167,131
— Derivative component of - BRI E 5
SYHL Bonds ZOTETERD - - 3,667 3,667
17,173 - 170,798 187,971
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)

The levels in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
instruments are categorised in its entirety are based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 or transfers into
or out of level 3 in the reporting periods. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

(A)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 1

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on the
quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted
market price used for the listed equity securities held by the
Group is the current bid price.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 3
Unlisted investment funds

The fair value was determined with reference to the
reported net asset value of the investment funds. Generally,
a change in the net asset value of the investment fund is
accompanied by a directionally similar change to the fair
value measurement. It is estimated that a 10% (2015: 10%)
increase/decrease in the net asset value of the investment
funds at 31 December 2016 would increase/decrease the
carrying amount of the investment funds by approximately
HK$9,705,000 (2015: HK$16,713,000), while all other
variables held constant.

B NFER

37.

DVEFTE )
BRAVEFEZERIA#)
RNHEZRHE D BTERE R FEF
EMEBEENHABNRIEER &
DEHTHMTAETEBOR - RS
A F—REE K7 MW EER
F_FMAEEARE T - NEEEK
RENBEEBNEMRBERBELER
HERRFER 2 FNEE -

(A) F—RPHELHTA
ERBRAES 2 A FEDENRS
Bz mERERFL - AREFE
Z EMIRAE SRR 2 TSR E
RBITHIZEAE -

E=grHEEIA

FLTHREEE

RNHEDNRBEZEERIKREES
ZEEREETE - —RME  KE
EeEEHMECEHEENNTE

B)

EREEMRAETZIERT K&
HERN—_F—R"F+-_A=+—H
ZEEFMEEM R 10% (ZF
—HF 10%) BEERIREES
Z BREEE IR A #19,705,000
BT (ZZE—RF : 16,713,000
JT) °

BREZERERAT
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 37. AVEFE#E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued) BEATEFEZEMTIAE)
(B) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 3 (Continued) (B) F=RHHEMTAE)
Unlisted investment funds (Continued) FETRERE S (&)
The reconciliation from the opening to the closing balances s B9 B HAAR 2 SRR EER AT ¢

during the reporting periods is as follows:

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZE—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
At 1 January mR—HA—H 167,131 20,306
Payments for purchases TEENR 14,516 146,088
Proceeds from sales HE TSR (98,728) (25,901)
Changes in fair value recognised in ~ ER4REIBZEZ
“Other gains and losses” in [ Efth s REE ] A
consolidated profit or loss BRZ AT EEE
— Realised gains or losses - RS EE 6,074 10,189
— Unrealised gains or losses - RIERU R EE 8,054 16,449
14,128 26,638
At 31 December R+=B=+—H 97,047 167,131
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 3 (Continued)

Derivative component embedded in SYHL Bonds

The reconciliation from the opening to the closing balances
during the reporting periods is disclosed in note 27 to these
financial statements. Fair value was determined by reference
to valuations performed by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, using the

7. AEEFEE)

BRAVEFEZEMIAE(ZE)
(B) BB=RHFHLHTAE)

BEERESFA S Z1TELET AR

D

HE R ER  BIREER
AL EMEMKRMTE27 - RFETD
SEB A BREEMEMREF
EAERQRRA B MEEER
RETZHEETE - REFMAZ2

Binomial Option Pricing Model. Details of the parameters BZFFBAT
used in the model are as follows:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
—B-RE “T-0fF
Parameters 2 +=-A=+-B +=ZA=1+—H
Share price of the Company ARRIZRE HK$0.29 HK$0.29
0.297& T 0.29787T
Exercise price i HK$0.35 HK$0.35
0.358 7T 0.35/87T
Remaining life of the derivative PTHET A2 FIsrEH 0.88 - 1.00 year | 1.88-2.00 years

Risk-free rate

ERBRFIE

1.88-2.00F
0.38%-0.41%

0.88-1.00 %
0.89%-0.91%

Expected volatility TRHER I 41.93%-44.78% | 86.72%-88.83%
Expected dividend yield EHRE X 0.00% 0.00%
—B-XEER BRIERERAT
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 3 (Continued)
Derivative component embedded in SYHL Bonds
(Continued)

Generally, a change in the Company’s share price and
volatility is accompanied by a directionally similar change to
the fair value measurement whilst a change in the risk-free
rate is accompanied by a directionally opposite change to
the fair value measurement. The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the carrying amount of the derivative component
embedded in SYHL bonds at 31 December 2016 and 2015
to a change in the significant unobservable inputs while
all other variable held constant. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in loss (and accumulated losses) for the
year. For an increase in loss (and accumulated losses) for the
year, the balances below would be negative.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. AVEFE#E)
BRAFEFEZEMIAE(Z)

E=RAHLHIA (B
BFIRES NS T T A
5 ()

—fTE - AAFRE R
BEEHATE B RALHH
28 - MEARHE EBAISY
HATESBHBR A AED - T
FMMBRRIRESNE 2 74T
EMAR B ~ER=F—AF
+=A=+—A2E@E  EHE
HRETRER THEAT AR

FRFEREER(RRAER) KD
i F R E (R RETEE) B
ANKRBEERRAH -

2016 2015
b AL —_E—hF
If higher If lower If higher If lower

fisi £F+ i ™ Ex fid L= F+ fid K
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TERT THET TET

+/-10% (2015: 10%) in  NABIAE_LF, T 10%
Company’s share price  (ZZ—HF : 10%)
+/- 20% (2015: 20%) in 18 _EFt T % 20%

volatility (ZZT—FHF : 20%)
+/-2% (2015: 2%)in  EREBFIR EFTE 2%
risk-free rate (Z=—HF : 2%)

- 624 (1,008)
- 1,167 (1,284)
- (303) 317
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost under current assets and current liabilities,
respectively, are not materially different from their carrying amount
as they are all short term in nature.

The fair value and the carrying amount of the financial instruments
of the Group, other than those whose carrying amount reasonably
be approximate to their fair value, are as follows:

37. AVEFE#E)

BREBERATTECSTE
RBEE MR & EE NMEEEA AR A
ResRBEERERBEYARERN I
ERNFEEEXARABETEEARAE
Al

AEBEEeMTA(REEREAFES
BHAOREZSR T AR A FER
BREEMT ¢

Carrying amount Fair value
AREE AE¥E
2016 2015 2016 2015
—R"F T-hF ZB-RF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FETT FHERT FET
Financial liabilities tRIEE
Liability component of AMREFEaEE D
convertible bonds
- SYFS Bonds - SYFS&H 41,695 35,249 41,600 35,046
— SYHL Bonds - BRERES 124,107 113,213 130,200 114,880
165,802 148,462 171,800 149,926

The liability component of the convertible bonds are categorised
under level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Their fair values are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using an
equivalent market interest rate for a similar convertible bond with
consideration of the Group’s own non-performance risk.

ZE-RFER

AR ER 2 BERD IREAFES
RHEFE =MD - ERAFELTRA
SEB S TEAORREK - SRARLA#®
BBz 2 [RE M5 AT H AR HRIE
EREETTHE
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HEZ

38.

T AF+-ASt+—ALFE

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivables
and payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis
as trade receivables from or trade payables to HKSCC. For the
net amounts of CNS money obligations receivables or payables (i.e.
after set-off) and other receivables and payables (such as deposits
included under other assets), they do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the consolidated financial statements since the right
to set-off of the recognised amount is only enforceable following
an event of default and the Group does not intended to settle the
balance on a net basis.

The tables below set out the financial assets and liabilities subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement and similar

arrangements:

38. KEETHMEERTHMAEE

A E B 3 AR B B THER - LA
HERE B E 2 S B R E T
R B P B 2 BB AR -
R PERE R RE S EE 2 M2 E
SRR E BB - LB
A B 8 5 R B K 4 R
(BDHE 88572 ) LA 2 3 0 8 M 2 8 B
(MEAEEAT 288 2 LS
BME  BREHERREBERED
FORARFARANT - BARET
R EEREH Y - W RIUEY
THARGANBRREHZIDE -

W - R SIMITE ERETHER
BUZEz e EERBREHINT
*x:

Amount due from HKSCC

EBWEBEERIE
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T T
Financial assets EHMEE
Gross amount of recognised EERCMEELTE
financial assets 1,680 32,543
Gross amount of recognised RiRE MAR R 8
financial liabilities offset in the ZEERERBERTE
consolidated statement of
financial position (1,680) (1,502)
Net amounts of financial assets included T A4RA M FEARNE
in the consolidated statement of e BB E R
financial position - 31,041
Related amount not set off in the RIERE TS AR R 85
consolidated statement of 2 HEERUR
financial position
— financial instruments - ITA - =
— financial collaterals - SRR - -
Net amounts HEE - 31,041
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38.

=

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

38. KFETHEEREHEE @)

Amount due to HKSCC

ENEBEERIE
2016 2015
—B-RF —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHExT FA&T
Financial liabilities sRIEE
Gross amount of recognised EERcRBERS
financial liabilities 36,036 1,502
Gross amount of recognised ERE MSAR R 8
financial assets offset in the ZEEReREELTE
consolidated statement of
financial position (1,680) (1,502)
Net amounts of financial liabilities included  5F A4R4& BT R KR
in the consolidated statement of B EFE
financial position 34,356 =
Related amount not set off in the RIERE AR R 85
consolidated statement of Z HHFAFIE
financial position
— financial instruments -SHBITA - -
— financial collaterals - 2R o - =
Net amounts HRE 34,356 =
—REEH BRRERARAR
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38. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. KETMEERTMEBE#)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)
The table below reconciles the “Net amounts of financial assets TREY EX[5FAZREREMRARZ
and financial liabilities included in the consolidated statement of SPREENERE EFHE | BRE 0%
financial position” as set out above to line items in the consolidated RMER TSR B 2 $ER -

statement of financial position:

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Trade and other receivables and B RHEMEBERERRUAR
prepayments FERRIE
Net amounts of financial assets included  F A4RA B R K
in the consolidated statement of L EREEFR
financial position - 31,041
Amount not within the scope of I TR B N SRIR
offsetting disclosure 31,970 260,189
Trade and other receivables and REPBARAKZT
prepayments presented in the 2B 5 N HAh R AR TR
consolidated statement of VAR FBAT IR
financial position 31,970 291,230
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 & H it fE{F BRFX AR
EstER
Net amounts of financial liabilities included &+ AR & B ISR L&
in the consolidated statement of ZEMBEFE
financial position 34,356 =
Amount not within the scope of I B B N R
offsetting disclosure 385,193 117,030
Trade and other payables and accruals FREPBARAKRZET
presented in the consolidated 2B 5 KR EMERIRNK
statement of financial position AR EETE A 419,549 117,030
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39.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which mainly
includes borrowings and convertible bonds as disclosed in notes
26 and 27 respectively and total assets of the Group.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the issuance of new shares and
the addition of new borrowings.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission and are required to comply with the financial
resources requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The Group’s
regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up share capital
requirements and liquid capital requirements under the SF(FR)R.
Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid capital level
of these entities to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
throughout the year.

ZE-RFER

39. EXEH

AEBHEENETER  UERAS
B RE SRR L S R B B AR
BEHRRE SRR B E—FE
REBEREREL EL) -

AEEEARERER (EEREREE
KA E S - D B B R 26 &
27) MR E B EBTRAENK o

ARAAEEREESELARBE - BE

T EREEEAKANIALEAREEE

- ERNEEFH HERZ  A5E

H%Lﬂ% TR RIE A (e B F B H &
BEARE -

FETREEEXEEREF M EERE
RLBeETE ARBREEREFLHE
(MBER) R (B ME (MBE
B RAN]) BTHBEIRETE - AEH
XETERAETRESF LG (MHE

IR R AITE TR ERARTE RRE
BABRE EEESATYEEZEE
BIRBESNKE  UBRHEEEFR
HE(MBER) KRB THERBER
RE -  AEEXETERNEEFEDR
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debts divided by total assets. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratio at the
reporting dates is as follows:

39. EXEE#®)

AEEBAE A AR B REEEE
£ EARELEAEBREREAER
- REE SRR L ERRE
AEAT - RSB AR ELE
T

2016 2015

—EB-REF —T—FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ExT FHET

Borrowings BE 26,427 222,314
Convertible bonds AR E S 165,802 148,462
Total debts B85 192,229 370,776
Total non-current assets IEmB B EERE 85,105 83,710
Total current assets MENEELERR 693,146 587,451
Total assets BERE 778,251 671,161
Gearing ratio BEAREELE 25% 55%
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40. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 40. BEAX A 8K RARER
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#BxT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERBE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REAE 17 22
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARIRIRE 78,369 135,585
Derivative financial instruments PTEERIT A - 3,667
Loan to a subsidiary m—RENBARELER - 100,940
78,386 240,214
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments H A fE UG BRFX N TE A 5008 2,016 655
Loan to a subsidiary m—fEMB A RER R ER 100,943 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSB B A RIFRIE 37,718 39,476
Cash and cash equivalents BE&NMIBEERER 720 1,999
141,397 42,130
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hip R N E & 978 811
Borrowings BE 15,387 =
Convertible bonds ARRES 124,107 —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERH B A R RUE - 75
140,472 886
Non-current liabilities FRBEES
Convertible bonds ARRES - 113,213
- 113,213
Net assets EEFE 79,311 168,245
EQUITY s
Share capital A&7 177,128 174,328
Reserves (note) fb e (MIsE) (97,817) (6,083)
Total equity FEREEE 79,311 168,245
On behalf of the Board REESE
Wu Siu Lam, William Cheng Kit Sum, Clara
K - 1524V
Director Director
EF EE
ZE-REFER BRIEIR AR QT
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40. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 40. EREAARQ AR RKRER (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: PsE -

Capital ~ Convertiole ~ Contingent
Share  Shareholder's ~ redemption  bondequity  consideration  Share option  Accumulated
premium  contribution reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Ak ES
kg€ BRI RrERRE  ERRE GAKERE  BRERG Bar 3t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
A Thn Th A TEn TEL i Thn

At 1 January 2015 W-E-1%-F-A 226,170 7,834 47 34,408 28,943 12,692 (234,694) 75830
Issue of shares upon exercise of  REREEEMRTRA

share options 3,294 - - - - (1,083 - 2211
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS 3204 = - = = (1,083) = 2211
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (84,124) (84,124)

Other comprehensive income Hto2EkE - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income A2 ERELE

for the year - - - - - - (84,124) (84,124)
Transfer to accumulated losses  EHZRiTAE - - - - (28,943 = 28,943 =
Forfeiture of share options REERE - - - - - (3,142 3142 =
At 31 December 2015 RIB-RE+A=t-H 229464 7834 477 34,408 = 8467 (286,733) (6,083)

Capital ~ Convertible  Contingent
Share Shareholder's  redemption  bond equity consideration  Share option  Accumulated
premium  contribution reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES

RiEE BhRiE RARERG BhEGE INRERE  BRERRE ZithR &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR Tén Fin TR Tén Tin TR Tén
. _______________________________________________________________________________|

At 1 January 2016 R=E-"%-5-A 229,464 7,834 417 34,408 - 8,467 (286,733) (6,083)
Isstie of shares upon exercise REREEFREARG

of share options 11,588 - - - - (4,168) - 7420
Transactions with owners HREAZR S 11,588 - - - - (4,168) - 7,420
Loss for the year EMEE - - - - - - (99,154) (99,154)

Other comprehensive income Hh2mkE - - - - - -

Total comprehensiveincome ~ EAZAUZEE

for the year - - - - - - (99,154) (99,154)
Forfeiture of share options R RE - - - - - (208) 298 -
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RETZA=1-RB | 241,052 7,834 477 34,408 - 4,001 (385,589) (97,817)
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 4. ERFIMEARFE
COMPANY
The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, TRENNEESRALAEBEENEE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results SEBEERKFELEZARTRBER
or the assets or liabilities of the Group. To give details of other A BEEZRE  RHHEMMNBARFE
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in SREBANILE -

particulars of excessive length.

Country/Place Particulars of Proportion of Principal
of incorporation issued/ nominal value of issued/ activities and
Name or registration paid-up capital paid-up capital/interests place of operations
B BRf7/ BT/ BRRE/
£ ERER/HE BHEAHE EEAERML TEEBREENY

Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries

ALNARE  WELTARA

Beijing Herun Daxin Asset PRC Paid-up capital of = 99.9% Proprietary trading in
Management Limited RMB10,000,000 the PRC
GRAEEEEEER T ERER RAEETLERS
AREARA AE%10,000,0007C
Kingwell Management Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% - Provision of administrative
HK$1,000,000 services to group entities
in Hong Kong
BNERERAR" BB 1,000,000/ 7T LAk MEEEEERREM
THR%
Sheng Yuan Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares of = 100% Provision of investment
Limited" HK$20,000,000 management and
advisory services in
Hong Kong
RREEEBERAR" A 20,000,000/ 7 & @R REBREREER
RERRS
Sheng Yuan Capital (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary shares of = 100% Provision of corporate
Limited" HK$6,000,000 finance advisory services
(2015: HK$5,000,000) in Hong Kong
BRER(RE)RRAR" BB 6,000,000 & T & &R RERRECEREER
(ZZ—R% : 5,000000%7T) fis
Sheng Yuan Finance Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = 100% Provision of money lending

services in Hong Kong
BRVBARAR" i 1B ERR RERREETRE

ZE-RFER BREZERERAT
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SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 4. XREMBARFE#E)
COMPANY (Continued)
Country/Place Particulars of Proportion of Principal
of incorporation issued/ nominal value of issued/ activities and
Name or registration paid-up capital paid-up capital/interests place of operations
BilAE] B/ BT/ BRRE/
£ ERER/HE BREARE REEERIM IEEBREELY
Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries
RAARE  WELTRE
. ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Sheng Yuan Financial Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = 100% Proprietary trading in
(HK) Limited" Hong Kong
BREEAR(BE) BRG] BE 1ATERR REBETLERS
Sheng Yuan Financial Services British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares of 100% - Proprietary trading in
Group Limited US$5,500 Hong Kong
ABRNES 5,500 % L&A REBETLERS
Sheng Yuan Huanyu Trading PRC Paid-up capital of - 100%  Trading of chemical
(Shenzhen) Limited* HK$7,000,000 products in the PRC
BREFES (M) ERAF i 7,000,000 BT EHER RAEEE(L IEm
Sheng Yuan Resources Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary shares of = 100%  Trading of chemical
HK$37,000,000 products in Hong Kong
BRERERAR" &R 37,000,000 8 T & @R REREELIER
Sheng Yuan Securities Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary shares of = 100%  Securities dealing, margin
HK$65,000,000 financing, securities
placing and underwriting
and investment advisory
services in Hong Kong

BREFARAR) Bl 65,000,000/ 7T L@ REBETERRS
FRRE  EHRE
RAGHRERRE
ERR%

Sheng Yuan Senvices Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100% - Provision of administrative
services to group entities
in Hong Kong

ERRHERAR)" 3 1ATERR REASEERREL
TH R

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=+—RALEE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Name

1

Country/Place
of incorporation
or registration
B
ERER/HE

Particulars of
issued/
paid-up capital
BERTRA/
BHEAHE

4. RATFIMBATFE &)

Proportion of
nominal value of issued/
paid-up capital/interests

Principal
activities and
place of operations

IERBREELY

Sheng Yuan Tiancheng Investment
Advisory (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*

BRRKEE DA (R ARAR

Shenzhen Junzhi Trading Limited™*

AEEE HERAF

Shenzhen Qianhai Sheng Yuan Equity
Investment Fund Management

Co., Ltd.™
AFTERRREREESER
BRRA"

Ying Qushi (Beijing) Business
Development Limited"
AET (LR BRERARAR"

*k

*kk

" audited by BDO Limited

B NFER

PRC

P

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

E

wholly foreign-owned enterprise
Sino-foreign equity joint venture

Paid-up capital of
RMB3,020,000

EHER
AR 3,020,007

Paid-up capital of
RMB10,000,000

ERER
AR#10,000,0007C

Paid-up capital of
RMB4,010,000

AR#4,010,0007C

Paid-up capital of
RMB2,000,000
AR 2,000,0007C

BT/ BRRE/
EREERIL

Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries
ADARE  WEATRE
- 100%
- 99.9%
- 100%
100%
- 99.9%

o SEEERK
e H S
© o EREBILR

AIEZ

Provision of investment
advisory services
in the PRC

R B R R ERIR

Investment holding
in the PRC
R EETRERR

Provision of advisory
services to private equity
funds in the PRC

RPERELEREE S
ERRS

Investment holding
in the PRC
R EETRERR

EREFMEBMAERD

BREZERERAT

175



R

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-BLEFE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—F——-F —F—=F —F-OF —ZT—HF ZB-—XRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THEIT T T FETT F#ExT
RESULTS E
Revenue ek 7,251 62,136 414,588 405,678 69,475
Loss before taxation  BRFFIE1E (49,000) (40,091) (2,650) (31,730) (15,028)
Taxation HiIE (81) (155) (2,379) (2,668) (1,879)
Loss for the year FREE (49,081) (40,246) (5,029) (34,398) (16,907)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—FT——F —T—=F —E—mOF —ZET-—HF ZZE—KEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T FETT FHExT
ASSETS AND EEREE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BERE 118,661 119,404 528,401 671,161 778,251
Total liabilities BfERE (13,888) (48,856) (314,175) (492,873) (611,812)
104,773 70,548 214,226 178,288 166,439
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